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Bazara Glabal Public Friads Sares Open-andad Fund Campany
Year ended 31 Decermber 2024

Manager's report

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund''

Following November 25, 2024, we have adopted a dual-wheel investment strategy focusing
on high-dividend and growth-oriented stocks. Tha changs of investmenl strategy is due fo:

= China's Economic Landscape: Amidst a backdrop of gradual economic recovery and a
prevailing low-interest-rate environment (potential rabe cut), the attractiveness of high-
dividend assets has markedly increasad.

» Global Al Expansion: The rapid development in anificial inteligence worldwide, coupled
with heightened capital expendilures, is particularly advantageous for leading tech growth
stocks globally.

Outiook for 2025
For the forthcoming year, our focus will be on;

= Taritf Policy Impacts: Uncertainties surrounding tariff policies introduced by the Trump
administration, compounded by the risk of a U.5. recession and geopolitical tensions, are
elevating market risk aversion and exarting prassure on global equities. Addiionally, trade
wars pose significant risks (o lech industry leaders dependent on global supply chains,
potentially hindering advancements in Al and robatics due to rising costs,

» Economic Recovery in China: China's economy continues its path of gradual recovery,
supported by effective measures such as consumption subsidies and trade-in programs.
Private enterprise symposiums have also played a pivotal role in boosting market
confidence. However, challenges posed by LS. tariffs remain a short-term concem. We
are closely monitoring potential policy responses, including monetary, fiscal, and domestic
demand stimulation initiatives, which could mitigate some adverse effacts.

s Al-Driven Opportunities in China: DeepSeek's release has narrowed the gap betwean
China and the U.S. in Al capabilities, driving a re-rating of Chinese tach firms, This has
ignited a new wave of Al investments in China, accelerating growth across sectors like Al,
autonomous driving, humanaoid robotics, and the low-altitude economy, creating
substaniial investment opportunities.

While we anticipate heightened external volatility in 2025 compared to 2024, we remain
confident in the resilience of our portfolio companies. Industry consolidation continues to
favor high-guality firms, which we believe can thrive even in challenging conditions. Daspite
recent market complexities, we are witnassing the rise of adaptive leaders poised to succeead
in the evolving landscape. Our strategy is lo proactively identify and leverage the alpha
generated by these industry frontrunners,

"I'The name of the sub-fund was changed from “Bosera Zeal Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund®
to “Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund” from 25 Movember 2024,
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Manager's report (continued)

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund

In 2024, the Federal Reserve finally initiated the long-awaited interest rate cutting process,
implemanting three consecutive cuts totalling 100 basis points, Howewver, throughout the
year, driven by economic data and market expectations, inlerest rales exhibited wide
fluctuations: rising overall in the first half of the year, declining in the third quarter, and than
rebounding in the fourth guarier folowing the realization of rate cuts and the "Trump trade”,
U.5. Treasury yields returnad to their early-year levels at the shorl end, while long end ywelds
elimbed back to yearly highs, rising significantly compared to the start of the year, resulting in
a notably steeper yield curve. Globally, credil spreads narrowed further from an already tight
level, stock markets surged significantly, commaodities saw modest gains, and gold performed
strongly, reaching a historic high.

Oin the fixed income side, due to our concem on expansive valuation of credit and potential
US recession risk, the fund generally adopted a barbell strategy which focused on bath short
duration high quality credit bonds and long duration treasury bonds, which in hindsight did
not help strengthen performance, but such conservative pasitioning can help us navigate
through the potential turbulent market. On the equity side, our equity exposure contribute
positively to the fund's performance.
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Manager's report (continued)

Bosera USD Money Market Fund

in 2024, the global macroeconomic anvironment remained challenging, shaped by persistent
infiationary pressures and evolving monetary policies. The LLS. economy exhibited
resilience. Generally, the headline Consumer Price Index (CPIl) and core CPI remained
elevated, driven by robust consumer demand and sticky services inflation. The LS. labor
market continued 1o perform strongly. with low unemployment rates and sustained wage
growth. Thasa dynamics prompted the U.S. Federal Reserve (Fed) to maintain a hawkish
stance, signalling a commitment to combating inflation over premature rate cuts. Thraughout
the first half of 2024, money market conditions reflected these dynamics, with liquidity
remaining tight but manageable. Invesiors sought safe-haven assets amid uncertainties,
rasulting in strong demand for short-term securities. The yield on money market instruments
ramained elevated, benefiting those focused on liquidity management. In the latter half of the
year, geopolitical tensions, the presidential election, and economic downward developments
in key markels added layers of complexity to the investiment landscape. The Federal
Reserve conducted three rate culs since September 2024, and its cautious but proactive
stance helped stabilize market sentiment, fostering a more predictable environment for
iguidily management strategies. The relatively high interest rate environment parsisted, with
expectations of further adjustments depanding on inflation trends and economic
parformance.

Overall, by maintaining a portfolio of money market securities, primarily deposits and CDs,
the fund successfully capitalized on attractive yields while ensuring liquidity in a fluctuating
dollar market. This strategic approach not only mitigated rigks but also positioned the fund
favourably to adapi to ongoing economic changes, ultimately leading to strong performance
throughout the year. Looking ahead to 2025, we still anticipale a ralatively high but gradually
easing USD interest rate environmeant. The Fad's recent tone tend to be hawkish, reflecting
concams over persistent LS. nflation and potential fiscal and trade policy shifts under the
new U.S. administration.
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Manager's report (continued)

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - |

In 2024, the Federal Reserve finally initiated the long-awaited interest rate cutting process,
implemanting three consecutive culs totalling 100 basis points. However, throughout the
year, driven by economic data and market expectations, interest rates exhibited wide
fluctuations: nsing overall in the first half of the year, daclining in the third quarter, and then
rebaunding in the fourth quarter fallowing the realization of rate cuts and the "Trump trade”.
U.S. Treasury yields returned to their early-year levels at the short end, while long end yields
climbed back to yearly highs, rising significantly compared to the start of the year, resulting in
a notably steeper yield curve. Globally, credit spreads narrowed further from an already tight
level, stock markets surged significantly, commodities saw modest gains, and gold performed
sirongly, reaching a historic high.

During the year, the fund generally adopted a strategy which focused on short-duration high

grade credit bonds, which helped the fund navigate through the turbulent market and deliver
a relatively stable return,

o
Bosera Asset Management (International) Co., Limited

30 APR 2075



Custodian's report to the shareholders of
Bosera Global Public Funds Series Open-ended Fund
Company (the “Company”)

We hereby confirm that, in our opinion, the Manager of the Company and its Sub-funds has
in all material respects managed the Company and its Sub-funds in accordance with tha
provisions of the Instrument of Incorporation, as amended and restated, during the year
ended 31 Dacember 2024,
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of
Bosera Global Public Funds Series Open-ended Fund
Company

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statemeniz of Bosera Global Public Funds Sares Open-anded
Fund Company and its sub-funds (the "Company and its Sub-funds”) set out on pages 10 to
104 which comprise the statement of assets and liabilties as at 31 December 2024, and the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders and the cash flow statemant for the year ended 31 December 2024, and notes,
comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our apinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its Sub-funds as at 31 Decermnber 2024, and of its financial perfarmance and
cash flows for the year ended 31 Decembear 2024 in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stataments saction of our repart.
We are independent of the Company and its Sub-funds in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Directors and the Manager of the Company and its Sub-funds are responsible for the
other information. The other information compnses all the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinicn on the financial statemeants doas not caver the athar infarmation and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial stalements, our responsibility is o read the other
infermation and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is matarially inconsistent
with the financial stalements or our knowledge oblained in the audi or olherwise appears io
be matarially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is @ matenal misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing fo reporl in this

regard,
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Bosera Global Public Funds Series Open-ended Fund
Company (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Responsibilities of Directors and Manager for the Financial Statements

The Directors and the Manager of the Company and its Sub-funds are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs, and for such internal control as the Directors and the Manager delermine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterments that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors and the Manager of the Company and its
Sub-funds are responsible for assessing the Company's and its Sub-funds” ability to continue
as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and uging the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors and the Manager either intend to
liquidate the Company and its Sub-funds or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Directors and the Manager of the Company and its Sub-funds are required to
ensure that the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
relevant disclosure provisions of the Company’s instrument of incorporation dated 17
September 2021, Part 7 of the Securities and Futures (Open-ended Fund Companies) Rules
{"OFC Rules”), Appendix E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds (*UT Code™ and
Chapter 9 of the Code on Open-Ended Fund Companies ('CFC Code”) issued by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objactives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole is free from material misstatement, whether dua to frawd or error, and (o issue an
auditor's report thal includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and

for no other purpose. \We do not assume respansibility towards or accapt liability o any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nol a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror and are considered matenal if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basls of these financial statlements. In addition, we are
required to assess whether the financial statements of the Company and its Sub-funds have
been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevani disclosure
provisicns of the Company’s instrument of incorporation, Part 7 of the OFC Rules, Appendix
E of the UT Code and Chapter 9 of the OFC Code.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Bosera Global Public Funds Series Open-ended Fund
Company (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit n accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional sceplicism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of malerial misstatement of the financial statements, whethar
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
cbizin audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of nol detecting a material misstatement resulling from fraud is higher than for
cne resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misreprasentations, or the ovarride of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's and its Sub-funds’ internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disciosures made by the Directors and the Manager

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ and the Manager's use of the going
concearn basis of accounfing and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
materal uncertainty exisis relaled to evenis or conditions that may cast significant doulbt
on the Company’s and its Sub-funds’ ability to continue as a going concem. If we
conclude that a material uncertainly exists, we are required to draw attenticn in gur
auditor's report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to madify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company and its Sub-funds to cease to continua as a going concam.

Evaluate the averall presantation, structure and cantent of tha financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
fransactions and evenls in 8 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemnance regarding, ameong other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
defickencies in infernal confrel that we identify during our audit,
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of
Bosera Global Public Funds Series Open-ended Fund
Company (continued)

Report on matters under the relevant disclosure provisions of the Company's
instrument of incorporation, Part 7 of the OFC Rules, Appendix E of the UT
Code and Chapter 9 of the OFC Code

In our apinion, tha financial statements have been properly prepared, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Company's instrument of
incorporation, Part 7 of the OFC Rules, Appendix E of the UT Code ard Chapler 9 of the
OFC Code

b

Cerified Public Accountants

Bth Floor, Prince’s Builkding
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 APR 2025



Bozers Glaba! Public Funds Sevies Open-anded Fusd Company
Financial siatements f the pear snded 1! Dacember 2024

Statement of assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2024
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" The name of tha sub-fund was changed from “Bosera Zeal Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund”

1o "Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund” from 25 November 2024

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bagars ahai Fublie Fiade Saeee Dpav-andes Fuay Conspasy
Financial statarpants for the yeers anged 51 Decamber 2024

Statement of assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2023
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Approved and authorised for issue by the Directoron 30 APR 2025
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irecior

" The name of the sub-fund was changed from “Bosera Zeal Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund®

to “Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund® from 25 November 2024,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Engera Globai Puble Funds Sevies Dpen-ended Fund Company
Firvancial sfatemenis for ihe year gnded 37 December 2034

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Bagers Globai Bosera Hosers Stabke
Pubbc Funds Graater China Incarme 18
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The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financial staternents,
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Eosern Gilobal Pubic Funds Sevies Open-ened Fund Company
Firgnorad siofemerls for the year endeg 31 December 2054

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Boaera Giobal Bocsera Bosera Sinble

Pubiic Funds Graglar Chias Ircovms 18-
Sanes Dpan- Bostarn MHang Enhancey Bogara IS0 Manhy ‘nfarval
anaiag Fnd Kang Foudy Rafurn Bong Morey Marked  Ofering Boand
ol Crompany Pius Fung 1™ Fungd Fund Frnd = |
2024 2029 202 2024 2024
LUSD D usn UED s
Desbrdutions 19 shasghakders L] - - (258,268 . {345, 765
Income Belans taxation . 3450 352 ERET 2 1] 248,551 158 151,258
TRl g R 4 - (R N [0
Increass in nol ¥ESHts
attributable to shareholders
and total comprehensios

incoma for the yoar - Tam A4 416 2GR A5 151,288

) The name of the sub-fund was changed from “Bosera Zeal Hong Kong Equity Pius Fund”
to “Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund” from 25 Movember 2024,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bosera Gicbal Pubic Funds Seres Dpea-ended Fund Company
Enancial siafemens for the wear enoed 31 Decembar 2024

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year/period ended 31 December 2023
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of thesa financial statements,
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Boaeva Globa!l Pubhs Funds Seves Opes-ended Fund Company
Financial Zratemens e ihe pesr anced 31 Decamber 2024

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year/period ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

Bosern Global Bagara Gosers Siabie
Pubic Funds {rreater Cinrw Income T8
Sariag Opars Bosecd Hong Erhanced Boseva US0  Moall imereal
ended Fund  Kong Equity  Retum Bond  Money Market  Offgring Band
e Company Py Feny Flrwd Fumdd Fund =17
2023 203340 2023 2023 2023
=D HED LSk ush ush
Disinbalions 1o shargholgens 1 [T57.431} (1T 308
[Less)ifcoma bolore taxalion [1.872.522) TI4257 95.471.330 107 888
ViRhhabdng lax 4 (18,1043 (8,740 .
(Decreasslincrease in nsl
assols atiributable to
shsrekiolders and tatal
camprehenaive income for
the yaasporiod {1.880,718) TERET 99,471,380 107,966

" The date of establishment for Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond
Fund — | was 28 January 2022, This sub-fund was launched on 28 April 2023, and the
statement of comprehensive income is prepared for the pericd from 28 April 2023 to 31

December 2023,

“ The name of the sub-fund was changed from “Bosera Zeal Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund”
lo “Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund® from 25 November 2024,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sagera Globad Pilve Fungs Seves Open-anded Fund Company
Firancis! siademenia for ine year anded 31 Dacerbar 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2024
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anged Hamg Return Band  Money Marke! ring Bond
Aohe Company P WEWIJ Fung Fumngd Fung =1
Xz =024 2024 2024 2024
ush HED usD LIS uso
Balamce al Lha Deginning of
Ehia yaar 10, 238, 255 41 B53 68 2820 BET A4 BETT AT
Incraass f nal Eidsls
altriputabds 10 aluneh ol ders
B 18l compraingan
incame far the year &7 T 414 416 246 551,165 151,268
Bubscriptions and
redemptions by
ahuaraholdons
Subscriptions of shares &) & 2 266,087 14662 HT0.TTE 5,025 981
Rademplions of shares &h (S50 508} (3850811} [DDED. 740 485 {5,080, 8
Mol (reglompliong )
sulbscriplions by
shareholdors - _15.59‘2.53-&[- {20 543 Al A BB 121,30 63.418]
Balance b ihD @ of th yoar B XA 7148 12 ERA ATy Y TE3ADS 1YZ B ESE 301

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Basers Glabad Prblie Funds Saqez Opsn-andad Fund Comparny

Firdscinl sixnmants for fa yaar ended 37 Dacembar 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)
{Expressed in shares)

Class = & HED
Balanca al i Begining of the
ﬁ?ﬁmmmwmnm
ﬂ?urummw-,ur
Bafanca al ihe end of ihe yaar
el asset vakie per share
Class — & HKD - MiDis
Batsnce al ine beginning of the
ﬂru:uu-um:uhgn
mﬂ.eﬂmmwﬂr
Galance al ihe end of the year
Mol asset valus per shara
Chats — & RMB
Balance o e begrewng of te
ﬁrngmmmu-
mﬁ;mwmnw
Balones # (Fe end of th pear
M assel valss por share

Class = A RNB - Mbis
Balarce ot he beginning of the
mﬁ'ﬁ Sl oriped durng [he
S?-mﬂmudﬂ.ﬁlglr&,ﬂr
Balaze al the &ad of the yaar

Mol ARsad wakiy pid shang

Bogera Chaha dogerd Bogera Sloble
Pubic Funds Grpaler China oo 18-
Zorves Open- Bosera Mong Enhanced  Basera USD  Monbh inferval

ended Fund  Kong Equiy  RetunBond  Maney Merket  Ofiering Bond
Campany Plug Fund' Fund Fund Fund' = |
04 2044 b RE s e LrL
ShanEy Ehans Enanes whares hinres
10000 20010575
% BO "
(30,000) (20011178 .
bilee .
5 HRL 71387 - "
BT = 1411 A3a
1TEER 1.407 572
{148,143 Z10,211)
1,003,360 2708 495
HID) B G570 HEL 111345
- - B&.35T
i A4
(81,788}
7,653 -
= = FMB 117253
- P00
200
AMB 102227

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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doders Global Pubde Funds Savies Opan-enced Fund Company
Financia! stsiamants for (he year anced 37 Decembder 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)
{Expressed in shares)

Clpss — A LSD

Balarcs al tha beginning of tha

sr‘::mmmmm
yiar

Sharos redeenel during the yoer

Balance at the end of 1ha year

P dn et b pasr e

Clpss — A LISD - MDes

Balenge ul the beginning of ihe

srr:u:mmwmmlm

EPE:M duiring the year

Balance ol the end of the year

Pl e value pa §hane

Class = HED

Eadance al ihe boginning of th

%ﬂiuhh‘hﬂhmﬁh

mmm“mm thee year

Saiance al ihe and of ihe year

Mot adai] vahie pér shang

Bosava Siobal Bosers Bagara Slakh
Pubic Funds Graaler China fncovnie 18-
Saiids D Bazary Hang Enhanced Bagara USD  Month nderval

ended Fumnd  Koog Equily  Fofun Bong fcangy Difeving
Campany PN Fursd Fumnd Markel Fund  Boad Foad =1
224 2024 200 bk 2024
sharex shanes ENAnEL shares £hanag
00 00 195482 35,088,172 S.opg
- - 128,690 108 A, 13T T2EIS
= {150,000) (18T 454) (B, 557 478} (2 558
- 50,000 127,018 53,050,851 T2R25
UBD 71588 USDI0AsE  USD 113208 USD 10 SeER
40452 400331
i a0 F2 63
(438 5529 {214,821]
SRS - 418,113
USD 86433 = UED 103064

300000 -

3000000
HED 137172 =

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Sosars Glabal Prblic Funds Senins Opsn-anded Fund Company
Financial sislements for e year andag 37 Decemier 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)
{Expressed in shares)

Class =1 USD

Balance af ihe beginring of the
WAl

Shares subscrbed during e

e
Shargs tedesmed during the year
Shares sweich oul during the year

Dialance o the end of the year

Mg peeel vakse par enana

Class = C UED

Balance at the begrming of 1he

Shares redeemed during the year
Bedamnce al the end of T poear
Mgt assel valun per share
Class =5 USED

Balance i the Deginning of 1ha
Efl':-ll.hm durng the
s:-,n:-r-uu-md.n.nr-glhi-pur
Baianca al 1he end of (na yaar

Ml o value per shago

Bagers Global Bezera Gréalsr Gosers Slabie
Fubic Fungds Eazera China Incame 1§
Sarles Open-  MHong Kong Ennanced  Bosers LSO Movh infensa

ended Fuad Eguily Pius Ratrn Bond Money Mavkat Cifferiog
[ =1 Company Eymied Eund Fund  Band Fung -
224 2004 2024 M 2024
shares FLTT shanes shaies shanes
PO ATa 9,304 B24
A00 66T DED
(A8 38 500
2414 230 108 200
LISD 103361 LSO 11 3363
= 118,854 3658 -
576,535, a2
(B4 BT e
347 500 5a4
= LS 11,258
1187 100 32,810,954
23 588 8, 606, 84T
. 108 041 808
1,987 230885 21, 375,888
LIPS 7 5837 S 10,5414 LD 11,3544

The accompanying notes form an integral par of these financial statemanis.
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Bogera (inhal Pubii: Funds Seres Open-snded Fund Company
Financial sialements for the year enoed 31 December T024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2024

(continued)
{Expressed in shares)

Class = 5 USD - MDés

Balarron al the begirming of e
YR

Shares subscribed guring e
yea

Shartes redeemad during 1he year

Balance ol ther =0 ol he year

Mgt B350l value Dl ahane

Class - W USD

Balanca i the Daginrirg of tha
yar

Shawes subscribed durmg e
yoEw

Sraeies redecenid dunirg (ke year

Balance gt the ang of ke year

Mo assed value per shang

Bosava Global Eosers Bozara Srdds
Fushilc Fungs Graaher Ching dncome 18-
Zores Cpan-  Bosers Hong Enfanced Baters S0 Manth Infesvual

ended Fund' Hong Eguly  Fetere Bons Mangy Makel  Oflerog Bond
Moke Company Pis Fund Fung Fund Fung - |
2024 202a4™ 2029 2084 2024
sFiied shaes. shares shangs shans
2000
-]
(2.000)
- ES
a3 LSD 104390
4. 915.TE0
53 EL4 25
{35 DR B
28 EHD ARE
a LS 10, TR

" The name of the sub-fund was changed from “Bosera Zeal Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund”

to “Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund” from 25 Movember 2024,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thesa financial statements.
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Eogera Globe Publs Funds Senes Oper-ended Fund Campany
Financial sisiements for it yeor ended 37 Docember 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders for the year/period ended 31 December 2023

Bosera Gioba) Bosera Boagara Siake
Pubie Funds Gragtar O lrsame 15
Sariaz Opan- Bozars Hong Enfgacey Bopara USD  Manhy inferval
el Fussl Howig Equity Redurn Gand Moy Markal  DSaning Bang
Mol Comparey Pues Fumd Fund Feind Ford = | ™
i 2™ 202y 203 2y
F1=h] HELD usD =D USD
Balance # the Beginaing of
1k yiArpariad = 12208821 & I06435 1,500 673438 -
(Decreasey noreats in ned
assrls alfibutable Lo
shareholdess and [otal
COMEra NG WD NCDTD
1oF 1ha yearpanod (1L.BDL T8} T2B.517 04T 1,280 107968
Subscriptions and
rodomplians by
shareholdors
Subscrpliong of sharcy BN THATA LA06910 5474011765 B4TH B2
FHedempliors of shares B (155 324)  (4T0FE217) (3,059 601,997 {50 TH
Mol {redemptions)!
subscriptions by
sharshalders (A A5 __['1-1.5-51-3431! 1.5“-.5':5.3-?2 E.'lﬂ.l-_i‘-':
Balance ot the and af ihe
,‘I.I:H'plrﬁl;l V0238 208 41 BEA 65T 2 BIA GA3 A0 BATT 421

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemeants.
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Bosers Giobal Pubie Funds Seres Open-anded Fund Company
Financial 2ransmants o ihe el gnoad 17 Dacember 20

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders for the year/period ended 31 December 2023

(continued)
(Expressed in shares)

Class - A HRD

Balance al iha boginréng of the
yeaepenod

Shanes subscrbed dusfing the

e petioed
Shares nedeemed duiing (e
ynt o

Balanch at ihe end of b
yenipesriod

Mol @55l value por shang

Class - A HHD - MDis

Datance al ke beginning of the
L L e

Sharet subscribed during the
ez pareriacd

Sharcs fedeomed dunng e
e s finced

Bafance a 1he end of (he
PR Desrian

Ml aserl value por shane
Class - 4 RMB
Salance at he begirring of the
Shares subscribed duving The

Shares redesmed during (he
e vl

Balance al the end of the
wEan parid

et asset valse per share

Bagera Giohai

i

20 8837 450
B4
{872.818)

Bogera LUIED
Fund

Bgsern Stabe
fncame T
Month infensad
Ciffering Bong
Fund = |™
2020

shanes

SOT0STE

HFED & 5280

HKD 3 BTH3

173706
(.78

T8 e
{70104

Bi2m0e

HKD) B, 0359

JAVIE4
HEE 10.0711

a7 000
4,205
{1,844

=k Ly

FAE 11.0081

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



- Bazers Globa! Public Funds Sanes Openandad Fund Company
Firancial siatements for iha mar ended A7 Dacembar 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders for the year/period ended 31 December 2023

[ (continued)
{Exprassed in shares)
5 Bozers Floba Boders Boseve Slabe
Putrk: Funds Greater Cinng o 15
Series Oper-  Sozera Hong Enhanced Bosera UED  Monih inlpnesd
ended Fuad ﬁm:rEq'u? Risturn Bond Maney  Offering Bond
Noda Company Dieig Fsnd = Fund Marad Fund Fiind = "
03 P 2EF byt 20T
[ LTt ELES T LT shares Ehanes
Class - &4 USD
Batance &l the begioning of the
el et . 100,000 2 B0E 208 87 554 BS54
SNargs Sulioriecd duiineg e
AN pEod AT 20.F51. 7T 0, e
Shares swich In during the
yesarpaisd
Shares redesmed during [he
I e P raad - - {2614801) (4Z13BITH
Salanca & ro and of s
I yearnperiod - 100,000 195,482 35688172 .58
Mt asEEl Vs par hars 8 . USDASIZE  USDEBISE  USDIQTEFT  USD 103386
Ciass - A S0 - MDis
I Balance al the beginming o The
il period E - 1,516 941
‘Shares subsoribed during (ha
yaan pariod - - 43 540 - A00 326
' Shares redanmed ouring Iha
yean priod : E [GEL T * i
[Einl s ol the end of T
l year periad : . Bab 482 . 400321
Het assel valun por shane ] - - USDA&3EE - USD 101252
Class - | HED
I Balancs at the baginring of 1he
wE R
Shanes suha cribeed during
R0 4 - 3,000,000
Shares, redesmed during the
yemrpericd ’ . = .
Basnce & Ihs end ol 1me
l WEATPEN O # # 3000000
Mot assel vk por share 8 - = HEDD 3748 -
|_ The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bogera Giobal Prbic Funds Sares Opea-snded Fund Company
Finarcia stalements for the pear enoed 37 December 203

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders for the year/period ended 31 December 2023

(continued)
(Expressed in shares)

Clans - 1 USD

[Buslamc ol Uhix beginming of lhe
yaan period
Shares subscribed guring Ina

WRAN AT
Shares redesmed during the

yaaripasing

Shares swich oul during the
YR i

Balance 8t the end of Ihe
yeuripesiod

Hat aasal vakis pBF shane

Class - CUSD
Balare Bl ihe begreieg of he

Balarica al 1he end of ihe
YA pE G

Feml assed vakis par & hane

Class - 5 USD

Balence sl Ihe beginning of the
YRR

Shanes subscrioed during tha

YA period
Shares redeamed during the
yeanpenod

Batenca @l lhe erd of the
AP

Bl asset valee pic g Rt

Boieva Giobal Bozers Bosera Stabile
FPuhic Funds Greaher Ching ircome 18-
Zpries Open-  Bosera Hong Enitanced Sosera USD  Manl® Inferval

ended Fund Kong Fieturn Bangd Monsy  Oferng Bond
Campany Blug Feird © Frnd Markel Fund Furd - 11
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
AFneE aFdias shanes shans shiwes
1,510,628 6877 862
LR 101 247 377
[T 510528y  (1:28,540.515)
= = 474 71,384, 824
USDaseia USD 107asa
16,087,077
216,652, 8E3
(V12 815.602)
118 Bisd 50
LS 1086550
3030 1 000 a5 323 G423
1187 L] B5. 606817
{3,000 (1,000 (SE198.408
- 1187 100 32 810,851
LSO E 7756 S0 100454 USD 107534 .

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemeants,
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Bazers Globa Pubilc Furls Seres Dpan-andeg Fund
Amancial sisloments for e yoa onded 31 Decermber 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to
shareholders for the year/period ended 31 December 2023

(continued)
(Expressed in shares)

Clage - 8 USD - MDis

Balarc ol the begrring of the

yean' peied
Shares subscribad ouring he

yaar period
Shares redeamad durirg the

yEan pasing

Balance at ther eng of (he
yeanpariog

Mt pasel value par ghane
Class - N USD

Balance at the beginning of he
year petiod

Shareg subsciibsad IJI..I'I'W:H‘H
yaanpaicd

Sharns redasmad during (ha
yearpaiod

Balarss ot this eng of Tha
Wl a3

Mgt pased value par shane

Bosera Global Bosers Fagars Sl
Pubikc Funaz Grasheyr Ching fncoma 18-
Serigs Open-  Bosers Hang Enhancad  Bossea LUSD  Manth Infenal

anded Fund KI:I"I]'E:I.I-E' Falen Bang Monay Madks!  OWaning Bond
Campany  Plus Fund Fund Fimd Erwef —
2023 202 023 2023 i
afunes shangs shanzs shams shares
2000
2,000
USD 11861

BB T 3T

4,038,977}

= - 4815760

LSO 10,2854

I The date of establishment for Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond
Fund - | was 25 January 2022. This sub-fund was launched on 28 April 2023, and the
statement of changes in net assets attributable to shareholders is prepared for the pariod

from 28 Apnl 2023 to 31 December 2023.

# The name of the sub-fund was changed from “Bosera Zeal Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund®
o “Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund” from 25 Movember 2024.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thesa financial stalements.
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Cash flow statement

Bagers Global Fublic Funch Zenes O
Firancil sialements for the pear anded 3T Decarmber 2024

for the year ended 31 December 2024

Operating aclivities
Increass in rel assels allibutable o

Adjussmerns Tor

Ciwienn Incoma, red of wilnFaidng e

Irfgres! ncome rom Erancial sssels al bar
value through prots or kss

Interes income on bank deposils

Ciatribudions io shamsholders

Mt lpaiad fom Snancial Blatemants al far
vakua Through ool or ke

Oporating losses bolore changos In
wearking capital

Pagmerts 100 puichase ol inves|renls

Froceseds rom sak ol invesimenis

Decreass in oiner recaivables

Diecrease in fima deposits

(Decreatelinerests in admicEralion and
cussodian fee piyabie

(Db BEas i Manbgeman les
paEyakin

Decreass in payaliss under sala and
rEpATChAsn agresmants

Diacranss in accrusd spantes and aiher
paryabies

el cash goneraled Trom{used in)
oparationg

Dhidend nooms received, réd of withhodding
Eax

Erriarpal rocahoed from fndancial siash ol far
wahow e cagh ol or loas

Iieensl RComed receivid on Dank deDosile

Het cash generated fromd|sed in)
oporaling activilios

Fund Company

Bazara Sradle

Baosara Grealer dacome 18-

Bosera Mang  Chine Enhancen Bamera IS0 Adanfh Infenal
#ong Equey Hiafurn Band Money Market Cifienng Bond
Plug Fund ™ Fuad Fund Fuad - |
FlFe 2024 FulFe 2024

HKD LRG0 UED usD
WHTRTY 414.416 246 651,755 161268
(560, 143} (7,818} . .
e (1,059, 558) {E3608,387) (362 558)
16245 2,881} (223 126, 380) {17.7135)

3 A6l 50 - Mo TER

{1020 347} [ 1600, BEE) (5, PBc, DG8) (AR Bad)
(817.874) [4T2.411) (15 848,701 {178 BES)
{28 581 018 (41,353 18B) (D BED 43T ATY) (16,581 248}
4, F50, 565 T, 05, 537 1321 866 0% 15,868 143
{38.0061) {1.821) {334 113.371)

. . (HERR.TIFI1T) .

(14 1435 206,568 §.362
[5:513) (&1 6T 1446 454 487
.08 TI7)
[3181) (558 BATE (32 0EZ)
500417 28,127,313 {2817, 250 52T 201 BG5S

Erau49 2451

&2 872 1412578 25,706,370 &10 660
8245 2851 202 5356 810 10,128
5,509 043 23,551,104 (2688 117 810 GO0450

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,



Cash flow statement

Bosera Gioba' Public Fundy Seres Open-ended Fund Company
Einancial slafeme®s for the year ended 37 Depember 2024

for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

Financing activities
Precsans o Esuancs of sharag

Paymants on redemption of shams
Migtribulions to shareholdas

Met cash flows [used injigeneraled from
Tnansing ctiviles

Het increase fdecrease) in cash and cash
LTI R T

Cazh and cash equivalanis al the
kg inning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents o the
artd of tv yoar

Anadsis of cash and cash equivaients

Cath 8 bank

Siwarl- bear deposis wally onigana matuniy
wrthin Ihress monihs

Tolal cash and cash eguvalents on
stabarren| ol assels and Gabiilies

Bosera Shabe

Boasers Greslar Incame 758

Bogars Hong  Ching Erhanced Bodars IS0 L L LT
Faog gy Reiurn Bang ety Ikl Offaring Bong
Plas Fung Fomg ™ Funi Frnd = |
brk 024 203 2024

HED ush =D UED

- 2265967  MEE2ETDTTE 5,025,851
5,592, 508) (31681,145) [958, 743,468 {8 B, 355}
- [ELT R Y] (e, T
{5502, 50ET [£0.850 444) 4503, 921,311 {413, 184)
17435 {288, 250] 200 D03, 501 ZTT.2E4
30570 5451 1,42 048, 702 TG B 38
358.014 55,201 3430053 203 3839032
35074 66, 01 1,240 048 455 383 802

2 184 003, Ta
IS804 68, 201 3430 053 203 333802

" The name of the sub-fund was changed from “Bosera Zeal Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund®
to "Bosera Hong Kong BEquity Pius Fund™ from 25 November 2024,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash flow statement

Basera Gilohal Fublo Funds Senes Open-snced Fund Company
Fivanchal siadements for e pear pndeg 31 Decemier 2004

for the year/period ended 31 December 2023

Ciperating activitios

|Decreaseifincrease i nol assess
Airinuiabke po shansholders ard lolal
comprEhansive income Tor he yearipariod

Adiiments for,

Drvidend income, nel of wilhholding tax

inarnel incoms nom fnandal assels af fair
wahpe through prodt ar ioss

inlemsl incoms on Bank deposts

Districanions o shase hoigors

Net lossesigring) bem (mancial
slatements al far value (Feough profil o
kias

Ciperating losses bedora changes in
waorking capital

Fayimesnis faf purchase of mesaments.

Prssepds am sake of invesimenls

Decreaseing ease) in olher neceivalies

InCrease in time deposits

{Dacreaselincraass in admintsiration and
cutindian fss payanis

(Diecraas aVincraase in management fee
ks

inciepse in payaties under sahs and
TEpUNCh s agrecmenls

{Cecreassiincraase in aocnssdg axpanses
and alber payabhes

Mat cash [usod inldgeneraied fram
GppEralicns

Dltum incoma ropanved, nel of wilhhakding

Intereal {paid cnjirecetved from financial
aLEsin &1 i value firough profit of s

Inberest income recined on bank deposits

Mol cosh (used pyeneraled frem
cperating activities

Ensers Siabie

Bogers Sogd Bozerg Grealer Incarme T8

HengKong  Ching Enharced Darsrs LSO Moath in'mreal

Equily Piug Relurn Bong Manay Markef Offering Band

Fund Fumg Fung Fumd — 1%

M2y a3 K03 2033

HED usD USD LSD

(1880, 715 IR AT 471 380 1070665

(ET2.7E6) B2, 103 P

i 2 &y [1,761.8000 (5997530 {151.508)

(5.858) {35, 04) = B (18,102}

- TET.A01 . 176,308

1,700,751 (4G4SR0 (1768473 {160,841)

{474 B3H) {BOE 208) [4.300,154) (85,9785

(23,214,058 [(50.837.421) (534 685 484} (11,728,815

2 38130 58,880 063 258231 403 THE TR

18872 [437) - (27 435)

= L (718 260 508}

(2070 (28.023) {BATR) 5,635

(18,072 {5,07) 26402 4072

- 2 AR TAG

6376 (25, B0} {27.108) 58 850

(1,195,119} 383,508 CHSE Ta3505) {E.282.326)
MWETH 61,469

GA07) 2,084,182 4,143 983 78,148

§,BEs 35 824 B5.501,503 17,671

[m.ig:. 40, 345471 {BOE DOE_118) (810 505

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of thasa financial statements.
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Cash flow statement

Bapers Glabal Puble Fuads Seces Open-sndsd Fund Company
Firdacial Jiainments for ihe yedr ended J7 Decembar 20024

for the year/period ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

Fimancing activiies

Precasds from @siasnes of dharst

Faymenis on redampion of shanes
Dislriutions o share holders

Mot cash flows {used injigenerated from
financing activilies

Hot {decrease)fincrease in cash and cashi
equ bralonts

Cash and eash oquivalonis i the
beg inming of the ycarperiod

Cash and cash equivalents al the
end ol Uhe yearperiod

Anakyss of cash and cash eguvainnis
Cash i bark

Short-lermn depasits with onginal malurity
witin thiee monthe

Total cash and cesh eguivaients on
simement of asseds and labllSes

Basars Slabie

Bogera Feal Bosora Greater tncame T8

Hong Mong  Chsma Enfanced Bospra LS50 fanfl Ieensa

Eqrdy B Frefurn Bood foney Marke! Oienag Bond

Fure! Fuad Furdf Fundg = [11

2023 023 2023 2023

HED usp Wso LsD

THATA 4586 510 B.a74 097 To8 BaTe 52

{155 324) (#7073 056y (3050507 BET) (B.047)

- [TaT 491 - { 1T 30E)

{BD 85O (42, 333 B4 Ty 1,514,500 828 B 253 147

(100771 {1908 4238) B0E511 08 10 58
1,351 380 & 303.B87 20537 993

05T MEAH 1,426 048 02 106,038

0878 385 a5 &5 208 15 106 538
1.010. 751 507

b ETE AB548 1,426 045,702 106,638

‘! The date of establishment for Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond
Fund = | was 25 January 2022, This sub-fund was launched on 28 April 2023, and the
cash flow statement is prepared for the period from 28 April 2023 to 31 December 2023,

% The name of the sub-fund was changed from “Bosera Zeal Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund”
to "Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund” from 25 Movember 2024,

The accompanying notes form an integral par of these financial statements.
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Bogem Gloda! Pubhs Fundy Semes Oppr-gndpd Fund Compeny
Sinancial siafemess far the yeer ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in United States dollar unless otherwise indicaled)

Tha Company

Bosera Giobal Public Funds Series Open-ended Fund Company (the *Company”) is an
open-ended fund company with variable capital and imited liability regulated under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO"). The Company is established with an
umbrella structure and the sub-funds of the Company have segregated Eability. The
Company was Incorporated pursuant to an Instrurnent of Incorporation filed to the
Companies Registry of Hong Kong on and effective as of 17 September 2021, as amended
and restated (the “Instrument”) with registration number OF0000025.

There were seven sub-funds created under the Company as at 31 December 2024,

Name of sub-funds Regustration dale
Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund 15 Oclobar 2021
Bosaera Greater China Enhanced Return Band Fund B December 2021
Bosara USD Money Market Fund 15 June 2022
Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - | 25 January 2022
Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - 11 25 January 2022
Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - [ 25 January 2022

The sub-funds are authorised by the Hong Kong Securities and Fulures Commission (the
“SFC’) under section 104 of the SFO. They are governed by the relevant provisions of the
Caode on Open Ended Fund Companies (the *OFC Code”) and the Code on Unit Trusts and
Mutual Funds (the *UT Caode”) issued by the SFC.

Other than Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund, Bosera Greater China Enhanced Retumn
Bond Fund, Bosera USD Money Market Fund and Bosera Stable Income 18-Manth Interval
Offering Bond Fund = | {collectively the “Sub-funds®), the remaining sub-funds are registered
under the SFC but are not in operation during the year ended 31 December 2024, therefora
they are nol presented in the financial statements. The name of the sub-fund was changed
from “Bosara Zeal Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund™ to “Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund®
from 25 November 2024,

The investment objective of Bosera Hong Kong Equilty Plus Fund is to genarate long-term
capital appreciation primarily through investments in equity securities with a China focus.

The investment objective of Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund is to
achieve mcome and capital appreciation through primarily investing in fixed income sacurities
and seeks lo enhance the relum through partially investing in equity securities with a Greater
China focus.

The investment objective of Bosera USD Money Market Fund is 10 invest in short term

deposits and high quality money market investments and achieve a refum in LISD in ling with
prevailing money market rate,
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Bogera Globa Pobic Funds Spres Open-ended Fund Compaay
Fnancial sinfements for the yedr ended 31 December 2024

The Company (continued)

The investment cbjective of Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - |
is to achieve stable income and total return by primarily investing in a portfolio of Greater
China fixed income securities.

The Company has appointed CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited (the "Cusicdian”), as the
custodian for the sub-funds. The Custodian is responsible for the safekeaping of all the
investments, cash and other azsets forming part of the assets of the sub-funds, and such
assets will be deall with pursuant to the terms in the Custody Agreement, The Custodian
must take reasonable care, skill and diligence 1o ensure the safekesping of the ralevant sub-
funds’ property entrusled to i

The Company has appointed Bosara Assat Management {International) Co., Limited (tha
"Manager’) to manage the assets of the Company and the sub-funds (i.e. to camy out
investment management funclions), pursuant to the Invesiment Management Agresmeant.
The Manager is licensed to carry on Types 1 (Dealing In Securitias), 4 (Advising on
Securities), and 9 (Assat Management) Regulated Activities under Part V of the SFO.

Material accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Intemational
Financial Reporiing Standards ("IFRSs"), which includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, Inlermnational Accounting Standards ("lASs"), and
Interpretations issued by International Accounting Standards Board ("IASE"), and the
relevant disclosure pravisions of the OFC Code and the UT Code issued by the SFC.

Malerial accounting pelicies adopied by the Sub-funds are disclosed below.

Changes in accounting policies

The Intermational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") has issued certain amendments to
IFRSs that are first effactive for the current accounting period of the Sub-funds. None of
these developments have had a material effect on how the Sub-funds’ result and financial
positian for the current or prior perods have been prepared or presented.

Tha Sub-funds have nol applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.
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Bosara Gioba! Pubie Funds Sanes Open-andad Fund Campany
Financial slalemens for ihe year ented 3 December 2024

Material accounting policies (continued)
Baziz of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements of the Company and the Sub-funds are presanted in their functional
curmencies = Unilad States dollars (“USD™) for the Company, Bosara Greater China
Enhanced Return Bond Fund, Bosera USD Money Market Fund and Bosera Stable Income
18-Manth Interval Offaring Bond Fund — | and Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") for Bosera Hong
Kong Equity Flus Fund. Tha financial statemeants are rounded to the nearest dollar.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that financial instruments classified as designated at fair value throwgh
profit or loss are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies st out
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimales and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reporied ameounts of assets, liabiities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors (hat are believed o
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements aboul carrying values of assets and liabikties that are not readilty apparent from
other sources. Aclual results may differ from these estimates.

The eslimales and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The previous financial slatements were prepared in respect of the parnod from 28 Apnl 2023
(eommencement date) to 31 Decamber 2023 (i.a. not a full year) for Bosera Stable Income
18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund — |, however the current financial statements were
preparad in respect of the full year ended 31 Decamber 2024, Consequently, the
comparative figures shown on the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flow and related notes are not comparable.

Income and expenses

Interest income is recognised as il accrues using effective interest method. Interest income
on bank deposits is separately disclosed on the face of profit or loss, Interest Income on
debt securilies is included in net gain from financial assels af fair value through profit or loss.
Dividend income and all other income and expenses are accounted for on an accreals basis.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash inflows from investments are presented
net of withholding taxes, when applicable.
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Bogeva Global Pitwe Fungs Senes Open-enced Fund
Fnancipd Jaiemeals for e pear ended 31 December 2024

Material accounting policies (continued)
Investments
Clagsification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Company and its Sub-funds classify financial asssls as measured
at amorised cost or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL").

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest ("SPPIT).

All other financial assels of the Company and its Sub-funds are measured at FVTPL.

Busingss moded assessmeant

In making assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial assel is

held, the Company and itz Sub-funds consider all of the relevant information about how the
business is managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whathar the investmeant strategy focuses on earmning contractual inlerest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets
to the duration of any retated liabilities or expecled cash outflows or realising cash flows
through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company and its
Sub-funds' management;

- Ihe risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managad;

how the Manager is compensated: @.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assels managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- Ihe frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assels in prior penods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not quality for

derecognition are not considerad sales for this purpasa, consistent with the Company and its
Sub-funds’ continuing recognition of the assets.
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Financial slaiements for the yeer ended 37 December 2024

Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments {continued)

Classification of financial assets (continued)

The Company and its Sub-funds have determined that they have two business models.
= Hald-lo-collect business model: These financial assels are held to collect.

= Oiher business model these financlal assels are managed and their parlormancs is
avaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

Assassmen! whather conlractual cash flows are SPPY

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” iz defined as the lair value of the financial
assel on initial recognition. “Interest” s defined as consideration for the time valua of money
and for the credit risk associaled with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
cosis), as well as a profit mangin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash fiows are SFPI, the Company and its Sub-funds
consider the contraciual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial aszet contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment,
the Company and its Sub-funds consider:

- contingent events thatl would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
leverage features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Company and its Sub-funds’ claim to cash flows from specified assets
(e.g. non-recourse features), and

- features that modify consideration for of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rales).

The Company and its Sub-funds classify their investments based on the business madel and
contractual cash flows assessment. Accordingly, the Company and its Sub-funds classify all
their inwestmenis into financial assels and labilities at FVTPFL calegory. Financial assels
measured at amortised cost include cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, interest
receivable, dividends receivable, amounts due from brokers and other receivables.

Reclassilicalions

Financial assels are not reclassified subsaguent to their initial recognition unless the
Company and its Sub-funds were 1o change their business model for managing financial
aszsels, in which case all affecied financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments {continued)

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are clagsified as measured at amortised cost or FYVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is a derivalive. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Foreign exchange gains and losses ame recognised in profit or loss,

Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recogrised in profil or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost include amounts due to brokers,
administration and custodian fee payable, management fee payable, amounts payable on
redemption of shares, payables under sale and repurchase agreements and accrued
expenses and other payables.

Recognition

The Company and its Sub-funds recognise financial assets and financial liabilities on the
date they becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised on a trade date basis. From this date, any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabllities at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded.

Financial liabilties are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed their
obligations under the contract or the contract is a denvative contract not exempted from the
scope of IFRS 8.

Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value (transaction prica). Transaction
costs on financial assats and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
immediately.

Subsequent lo initial recognition, all instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value with changes in their fair values recognisad in profit or loss.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if any.

Financial liabilties, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interast rate method.
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Material accounting pelicies (continued)
Investmenis {continued)

Fair value measurement principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a kiability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal
or, in its absenca, the most advanilagecus market to which the Company and its Sub-funds
have access al that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

VWhen available, the Company and its Sub-funds measure the fair value of an instrument
using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active
if transactions for the asset or lability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company and its Sub-funds use
valuation technigques that maximisa the use of relevant observable inputs and minimisa the
use of unobsarvable inputs. The chosen valuation technigue incorporates all of the factors
that market participants would take into account in pricing a fransaction.

The Company and its Sub-funds recognise transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period during which the changa has occurred,

Met gains or losses from financial mstruments at fair value through profit or loss are included
in statement of comprehensive income. This item includes changes in unrealised gains and
losses and realised gains and ksses from financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss. Changes in unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial
instrumenis for the period and from reversal of prior period's unrealised gains and losses for
financial instruments which were realised in the reporting period. Realised gains and losses
on disposals of financial instruments classified as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’
represent the difference between an instrument's initial carrying amount and disposal amount
or cash payments,

Amorhsead cost measurament

The “amortized cost” of a financial assel or linancial lability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial Kability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of
any difference between thal initial amount and the maturity amount and. for financial assets,
adjusted for any loss allowance.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Investmenis fconfinued)
Impairment

The Company and its Sub-funds recognise loss allowances for expecied cradit lossas
{"ECL5") on financial assels measured at amorised cost.

The Company and its Sub-funds measure loss allowances at an amount equal to Ifetime
ECLs, except for the following, which are measdred at 12-manth ECLs:

- financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- ofther financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default cccurming over the
expected life of the assel) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assel has increasad significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company and its Sub-funds consider
reasanable and suppoartable information thal is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company and its Sub-funds’ historical experience and informed credit assessment and
inchuding forward-looking information.

Measurement of ECLS

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i e the difference between the cash flows due to the
entity in accordance with the coniract and the cash flows that the Company and itz Sub-
funds expect to recaive).
ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial assel.
Credil-impaired financial assels
At each reporting date, the Company and its Sub-funds assess whether financial assets
carried at amorised cost are credil-impaired. A financial assel is ‘credit-impaired” when one
or more events thal have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash fiows of tha
financial asset have occumad.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable dala:
- significant financial difficulty of the bormower or issuer;

a breach of contract such as a default or being mone than 90 days past due; or
- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankrupicy or other financial reorganisation
Presentation of allowance for ECLs n the statement of assets and liabilities

Loss allowances for financial aszels measunad at amortised cost are deducted from the
gross camying amount of the assets.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Investments {continued)

Impaimment (continued)

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off whan the Company and its Sub-

funds have no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a
portion therecf.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or whare the financial asset togather with substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, have been transferred,

Assets held for trading that are sold are derecognised and corresponding receivables from

brokers are recognisad as of the date the Company and its Sub-funds commit fo sell tha
assets,

A financial hability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
dizcharged, cancelled or expires,

On derecegnition of a financial asset, the difference belween the carrying value of the asset
and the consideration received is recognisaed in profit or loss,

Dffsetting

Financial assels and financial labilities are offsel and the net amount is reported in the
statement of assets and liabilities when the Company and its Sub-funds have a legally
enforceable right to offsel the recognised amounts and the transaclions are intended to be
settled on a net basis or simultanegusly, e.g. through a market clearing mechanism.

Foreign currency forward contracts

Qutstanding foreign cumrency forward contracts are valued at the year end date by reference
to the forward rate of exchange applicable to the outstanding term of the contracts
Unrealised gains and losses on outslanding contracts and realised gains and losses on
closed contracts are included in profit or loss under the heading “Net (losses)/gains on
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss”,. As at year end, the Sub-funds do
not hobd any foreign cumrency forward contracts.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities of the Company and its Sub-
funds denominated in foreign currencies are transtated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting penod. Differences arising on foreign currency translation are
recorded in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

(g} Relaled parties

(h)

(a)

{b)

A person, or a close mamber of that person’s family, is related to the Company and its
Sub-funds if that person:

(i}  has control or jeint conired over the Company and its Sub-funds;

(i) has significant influence over the Company and iis Sub-funds; or

(i) is a member of the key managemant parsannel of the Company and its Sub-
funds or the Company and its Sub-funds’ parent.

An entity is related to the Company and its Sub-funds if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company and ils Sub-funds are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related 1o the
others).

(i} One entity i an associate or joint vanture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of & group of which the other enfity is 8 member).

(i} Both entities are joint ventures of the same thind party.

(W) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third antity.

v} The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of an
entity related to the Company and its Sub-funds.,

iwi}  The entity is confrolled or jpinily controlled by a person identified in (a).

(viiy A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity oris a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
enfity).

fvii) The entity, or any member of a group which it is a pant, provides key

managemeni parsonnel services to the Company and its Sub-funds or io the
Company and its Sub-funds' parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Caszh and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and shert-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into Known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in valug, having been within three months of maturity al acguisition.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Taxation for the period comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax agsots and
liabities. Cumrent {ax and movemeants in deferred lax assels and liablites ane recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Curmrent tax is the expecled lax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacled or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting pariod. Current tax also
includes non-recoverable withholding taxes on investment income, capital gains and share
dividends.

Defarred tax assels and labilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the canrying amounts of assets and liabilities far
financial reporting purposes and their lax bases.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets lo the extent that it is probable that
future laxable capital gains will be available against which the asset can be utilised. are
recegnised.

The amounts of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlemani of the carrying amount of the assets and habdities, using tax rates
enacled or substantively enacted at the end of the raporing period. Defarred tax assets and
liabilties are not discounted.

Shares in issue

The Company and its Sub-funds classify capital instruments as financial labilities or egquity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.

A puttable financial instrument is classified as an aquity instrument if it has all of the following
features:

- It entitles the holder to a pro rala share of the Company and its Sub-funds’ net assets in
the event of the Company and its Sub-funds' liquidation.

-  The mstrument is in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instrurments.

- All financial instruments in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes
of instruments have dentical features.

= The instrument does nol include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or anoiher
financial asset other than the holder's rights to a pro rata share of the Company and its
Sub-funds’ net azsets.

- The iotal expected cash flows attributable o the instrument over the life of the instrument
are based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognized net assets or
the change in the fair valug of the recognized and unrecognised nel assals of the
Company and its Sub-funds over the life of the instrument,
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Shares in issue [continued)

In addition to the instrument having all the above features, the Company and its Sub-funds
must have no other financizal instrument or contract that has:

- Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net
assets or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of
the Sub-funds; and

- The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the puttable instrument
holdars.

All redesmable shares issued by the Sub-funds provide the investors with the right to requine
redemplion for cash at a value proportionale to the investor's share in the cormesponding
Sub-funds’ net assels at each daily redemplion date and alzo in the event of the
cormesponding Sub-funds” liguidation.

As al 31 December 2024, Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund, Bosera Greater China
Enhanced Returmn Bond Fund, Bosera USD Money Market Fund and Bosera Stable Income
18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - | had multiple classes of shares in issue. All the
classes of shares rank par passu in all matenal respects but have different terms and
conditions as set out in the Explanatory Memorandum, which include differant currencies,
minimum investment amounts, minimum realisation amount and minimum holding amount.
The redeemable shares provide shareholders with the right to require redemption for cash at
a value proportionate to the shareholders’ share in the Sub-funds' net assets at each
redemption date but also in the event of the Sub-funds’ liquidation. The redeemable shares
of the Sub-funds are classified as financial liabilites.

The Manager and the Custodian continuously assess the classification of the redeemable
shares. If the redeemable shares cease to have all the features or meet all the conditions
set out in paragraphs 16A and 168 of IAS 32, the Manager and the Cuslodian will reclassify
them as financial liabilities and measura them at fair value at the date of reclassification, with
any differences from the previous camying amount recognised in equity. If the redeemable
shares subsequently have all the features and meet the conditions set out in paragraphs 16A
and 168 of IAS 32, the Manager and the Custodian will reclassify them as equily instrumeants
and measure them at the carrying amount of the liabifities at the dale of the reclassification.

Payables under sale and repurchase agreemenits

When the Company and its Sub-funds sell a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an
agreament lo repurchase the same or a substantially simikar asset at fixed price on a future
date (sale and repurchase agreament), the arrangement is accounted for az a bormowing and is
recognised in the statement of financial position as a payable under sale and repurchase
agreements, and the underlying asset is recognised in the Sub-funds’ financial statemanits.

Fayable under sale and repurchase agreaments is subsequently measured at amortised cost

41



T

Boaera Gkl Pubic Funds Sares Dper-anded Fund Company
Financial Sfatevnends fov he yesr s10ea 11 Decamber 2024

Net gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Riealsed (losseal'geine an mvasiments
Met change in urrealised geins'{iosses) on
imvEsTmiEnts

Fealsed (losses)gans on nvesiments
Mat changs in unrealised (losses)igaing an
Irvestments

Bosera Gresier Boszars Siabhe

Cring ficome 18-

Bosera Hong Enhanced Bosara USD  Monih infenval
Mo Equly Retiam Bond  Mormey Markef  Offening Sond
Plers Fumd Fumg Fumg Fuind — |
2024 2024 2024 2024

HED Usn UsD UsD
(347.832) B1.267 222769 171,523

1,368,273 133,182 3,601, 207 {72,878)
1,020,341 1664, 455 58286358 208 oad
Bosara Grealer Bozere Siahia

Ching freome 18-

Bosera Hoang Emhanced Haosera USD  Movih Inferval
Mong Equify Radum Bond  Monay Market  Offaving Bond
Plrs Fund Fund Fung Flmd -1
2023 ik 2023 2023

HED UsoD UsD UsnD
{585,663) 176,925 BEB 831 4,090
{1,715,088) 317,855 200,542 158,831
11 T00.751) 494 580 1,268,473 160,641
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Taxation

Bosera Giobal Pulse Funds Sories Dpen-ensed Fund Company
Finarciad sfafemerds for the year endied 31 Decembser 2034

Mo provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as the
Sub-funds are exemptad from taxation under section 264 (1A) of the Hong Kong Inland

Revenue Ordinance,

Capital gains, interest and dividend income including share dividend received by the Sub-
funds may be subject to non-recoverable withholding tax imposed on the country of arigin.
Capital gains and invesiment incoma are recorded gross of withholding tax in profit or loss.

Under the general provisions of the PRC Corporate Incoma Tax Law and published tax
circulars, the Sub-funds would be subject 1o PRC withholding tax at the rate of 10% in
respect of its PRC sourced income eamed., including capital gains realised on the sale of
PRC listed companies, dividend income derived from PRC listed companies and interest
income earned in respect of PRC bank deposits and corperale bonds. This withholding
taxation basis should apply as it is intended thal the Sub-funds would be managed and
operated in such a manner that they would not be considered as a tax residant enterprise in
China or otherwise as having a taxable establishment in the PRC

Tax provision made by the Sub-funds for the yeariperiod are as follows:

Withholding tax on gividend

Withhalding tax on dividend

Bosara Hong

Kong Equiy
Plis Fund

2024
HKD

10,421

TR =D T

Bosera Hong
Kang Equiy
g Fung
2023

HED

18,184

Bosera Grealer Bosera Srate
Ching incoine 18-
Enhameed Bosora USD  Mondl irderes)
Ratum Bond  Monay Market  Offeving Bong
Finnd Fumd Fund - |
2024 2024 el
5D ush Uso
509 =
Bosera Graahar Hasora Stable
Chira incame 18-
Enframcid Boseva S0 Manlh nfanal
Rpfurn Bond Money Mankel  Offaring Bond
Fud Fimd Fertd = |
2023 2023 2023
zh usD sk

5,740
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Financial assots at fair value through
profit or loss

Bonds

Cerlificate of depasis
Funds

Equities

Financial assats al fair value through
profit or loss

Boads

Certficate of deposits
Equity Funds
Equities

Bogers Ciodal Puls Fungds Sevws Dpen-gnded Fung Company
Financiad sinfements for ihe year encied 71 Decemier 2034

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Bosera Grealer Eosara Sable

Ching ircome 18-

Bazara Hang Enhanced Basera USD  Manih inferval
Kong Equity Refum Bond  Momay Markef  Offering Bang
Plus Furng Fimnd Fund Fund - |
2024 2024 2024 224

HED s Uso uso
11,252,278 384 074,080 8901077

= 1,206,474 67T -

. 1,193,705 13,434, T04 15448

5 53,362 177 585 ¥ e
5,383,392 12,623,588 1,603,923 461 B 816 525
Basara Groalar Bosera Sfable

China ireame 18-

Boseras Hong Emhvanoed Bosara USD  Mowsth indereal
Kaong Equiy Melum Bod Money Marke!  Ofevng Band
Fius Fund Fund Fund Fung =
2023 2023 2023 2023

HED ush ush uso

808 849 35 945 pAg 76,000,000 17,084 BTG

- - 180,997,012 -

. . 12,725.542 -

B 7E2BED D40 281 . -
8,668,411 &0 520 270 277,722,654 11,094 878
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(a)

Bosera Giobad Puble Fungy Seoes Opea-ended Fund Companry
Fivancie! stadements for e year ended 31 December 2034

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions or fransactions enterad
into during the year/period between the Company and its Sub-funds, the Manager, the
Custodian and their Connected Persons. Connecled Persons are those as defined in the UT
Code issued by the SFC.

All transactions during the year/period between the Company and its Sub-funds, the
Manager, the Custodian and their Connected Parsons were entered inlo in the erdinary
course of business and under normal commercial terms.  To the best of the knowledge of the
Manager, the Company and its Sub-funds did not have any ather fransactions with
Connected Perzons except for those disclosed below, The relevant receivables and
payables are unsecured, interast free and repayable on demand

The Company appoinled Bosera Asset Management (Intemational) Co., Limited to
implement the investment strategy as specified in the Sub-unds' Explanatory Memorandum,
The Manager is entitied to receive a management fee in respect of each class of shares
calculated as a percentage of the net asset value of that part of the relevant Sub-funds
relating to the relevant class of shares as follows:

Management fee and Manager's reimburserment

Class A Clazs | Class C Clasz N Clazs §
B pa % pa % p.a % pa %pa
Besera Hong Kong Equity Plus
Fund 1.75% HiL MIL MiL ML
Bosera Greater China Enhanced
Retum Bond Fund 1.50% 1.00% MiL ML ML
Bosera USD Money Marke: Fund 0.15% 0.10% 0.4 5% 0.60% ML
Besera Stable Income 18-Month
Interval Offenng Bond Fund = | 0.60% MiL ML ML HiL

Bosera Asset Managemant (Intemational) Co., Limited has delegated its invesiment
management dulies to Zeal Assel Management Limited as the sub-investment Manager of
Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund for managing the sub-portfolio comprising the assets
and investments of the fund outside of the PRC. The sub-investment Manager eams
management fee at 50% of management fee and is payable by Manager. From 25"
November 2024, the appointment of the sub-investment Manager was erminatad.

The management fee is calculated and accrued on each valuation point and payable monthly
in arrears. The management fee charged for the year/period for each Sub-fund are
disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income. During the year ended 31 December
2024 and year/period ended 31 December 2023, the Manager has agreed to reimburse
cerain expenses incurred by the Sub-funds which is included in olher incomea in the
statemnent of comprehensive income. Management fee incurred during the year/period,
management fee payable at the year/pariod and, manager's reimbursemeant recognised
during the year/period and manager's reimbursement raceivable at vear/period end for each
Sub-fund are as below:

* Prior to 2™ July 2024, the management fee of Bosera USD Money Market Fund was
charged at 0,35% per annum of the Net Azsel Value on Class C Shares.
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fa) Management fee and Manager's reimbursement (continued)

Baspra Glipha! Pupis Funds Tones Dorn-anded Fond Company
Fnancie! sinfemenis for ihe pear enoed 31 December 2024

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)

2054
Bozera Sialie
Bosara Hong Bosera Grealar Bosara USD  fncomme 18-Month
Hong Equdy Plus China Enhanced Maney Makel Intarval Offening
Fund  Ralurn Band Frrd Fund Band Fund = |
H=0 usn ush Lusn
Management fee for the
L 175,790 301,359 13,311,680 51,4389
Management heas payabie
81 tha year < 8 457 14,558 1,695,185 4,538
Managers rembdaEemant
for the year ' 164,154 41,018
Warager's rembursamant
recevable™ 183,014 = 40, 808
2023
Bosers Slabls
Bazira Jaal Bagéra Gres Basara USD  Inboma T8-Manlh
Hang Kong China Erhanced Wcray Markal inmtervan Offaring
Equily Plus Fund  Refwrr Bond Find Fund Byt Fung = |
HIKD ush Lsh Lsh
Wansgament o for he
yearperiod 1 180,840 72,168 3,310,107 33,73
Kanagament fees payable
at the year'panod = 13,880 86,231 445 501 4. 072
Manager's raimbursement
for the yearipariod 118,713 - a5 27,438
Kanager's reimbursement
recaivable 113,388 - 27,435

H HEKD175,790 (2023; HKD190,440) was management fee paid and payable for Bosera
Asset Management (International) Co., Limited and of which HKDB3 026 (2023:
HEDS5,720) was management fee paikd and payable for Zeal Aszel Management
Limited by the Marnager during the yearfperiod.

@ HKDS467 (2023 HKD13,980) was management fee payable for Bosera Assel
Management (International) Co., Limited and of which Nil (2023: HKDE 990) was
management fee payable for Zeal Asset Management Limited by the Manager as at 31

December 2024,

™ Managers reimbursement for the yearpeniod is presented in statement of

04

comprehensive income as other income.

Manager's reimbursement receivable is presented in statement of assels and liabilities
as other receivables.



Bosera Global Publc Funds Zenes Open-ended Fung Company
Finarcial Eahemnents for the pear anced 31 Dscember 204

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)
Performance fee

The Manager is entitled to receive a performance fee from Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus
Fund of the rates below:

Class A Class | Class C
% p.a. % p.a. % p.a.

Bosera Hong Kong Equity FPlus
Fund 15% il Mil

The fee is calculated and accrued on each valuation day if the Nel Asset Value ("NAV™) per
share is above the high watermark, which is the higher of (a) the initial Subscription Price of
the relevant Class; and (b) the MAY per share of Class A as at the last valuation day of the
relevant financial period during which performance fee is assessed, crystallized and paid to
the Manager (after deduction of all fees including any performance fee and any distribution
declared or paid in respect of that preceding period). The high watermark for Class A
remains the same throughout the relevant pariod, imespective of the time of subscription, or
the subscription price paid, by a particular shareholder,

On each valuation day, the parformance fee accrual made (if any) on the previous valuation
day is reversed and a new accrual is calculated and made. [f the NAV per share is lowar
than or equal to the high watarmark, any parformance fee accrual is reversed and no
performance fee is accrued, The performance fee charged for the year'period is disclosed in
the statement of comprehensive income. As at 31 December 2024 and 31 Dacember 2023,
the performance fee payable is as below:

2024 2023
HED HED
Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund - -
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Sasgra Global Publc Funds Senes Qpevn-ended Fund Company
Financial statemants for the year anced 31 Decambar 204

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)

Infarmation on transactions with the Custodian and Adrminisirator

The Custodian and Administrator of the Sub-funds is CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited. The
Custodian and Administrator is entitled to receive a fee which is charged as a percentage of
the net asset value of the Sub-funds on each valuation day. The fee is calculated and
accrued on each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The Custodian and
administrator fees charged for the year/pericd for each Sub-funds are disclosed in the
statement of comprehensive income. The Custodian Is also entitbed 1o transaction cost
which is charged on each {fransaction. The Custodian and Administrator also eamed fees for
providing services to the Sub-funds during yearperiod. As at 31 December 2024 and 31

December 2023, details of such fees incurred during the year/period and relevant payable at
the year/period end date are as balow:

Administration and cusiodiamn fes rale

Hinrmum adminsirstion and
custodan fes 11

Administration and cuslodian fese far
the year

Adminstration and cuslodian fes
cayable at the yaar end

Agcourting fee for the year

Accourting fee payable al the year
end

FATCA/CRS rale l=a rale
FATCA'CRS fes far the yaar
FATCAICRS fae payable

Transfer agancy ‘ee rale

Transler agancy ‘es &l the yaa

Transfer agency fee payable at ihe
year and

Transackion feas per transaction

Transaction fees for the year

Transaction feas payatle af the year

2024
Bogera Groafer Bosera Stable
Ching Incame 18-
Basara Hong Enhancad Bosava USD iannh Inferval
Hong Equiy Return Bond Money Marked Ofaring Bond
Piirs Fond Fund Furmid Fiind - |
HED Usn Usn ush
0105 0. 10% 0 (55 . 10%:
HED &, 000 HKD 5.000 HED 5,000 HED 5,000
per manth per manth per manih per manih
10,112 27,858 2,794 879 8,601
480 4,408 311,114 12,017
21 858 2. 668 1. 8934 2,800
82651 &M - 2,800
US04, 000 S0 4000 UsD 4,000 USD & 000
for each pared  Torgach peried  foreach perod  for each penod
11373 4 02 2009 4 0433
#3116 6.013 &, 000 6,028
IS0 4 000 US04, 000 U0 4,000 UED 4 660
T yaar par yaar par ypar par year
31,372 4022 4,000 4003
2,728 687 250 4 325
uUsh 25 UsD 25 ush 25 usD 25
116,656 et ] 2775 2 850
£.070 350 - 425
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Bozera Flohad Public Funds Sades Open-anded Fund Company
Financial stxdaments for fhe year ended 37 December 2024

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)

fe) Information on transactions with the Custodian and Administrator {continued)

Adminstration and custedian fes raia

Minimum adminstrabon and
cusiodian fee 1

Admingtration and custodian fee for
thie yidarpenod

Adminisiration and custodian foes
payable at the yearpariod and

HAeocounting fee for the yaar/
pened”

Accounting fea payable at the
yaarparod end

FATCA/CRS rele fes rate
FATCA/CRS foa for the yearperiod
FATCA/CRS foe payable

Tranaler apancy lese rale

Transier agency lae at the
yearpariod and®

Tranaler agency lee payabls al tha
yeanperiod and

Transaction lees per ransacton

Tranzaction faes for the yaanpeniod

Transacton fees payable al the
yaariparniod and

2073
Hosars Graaiar Bosera Siable
Bosare Zeal Gl lnome 18-
Hang Kong Enhenced Hoswera US0D Monfh Infarvai
Equily Plus Rilurn SBongd Mooy Markel Cilfaring Bornd
Femnd Fund Fng Fund =1
HED uso us0 LED
0 10% 0109 0.05% 0 10%%
HED 5 000 HED 5 000 HKD 5,000 HKD 5,000
par manih par month par month per monih
11,620 48 158 Pt e 5835
B04 2873 104, 246 5835
21,787 2. 785 2. 784 -
52 9322 5 305 5,74 5
US04 000 WSO 4 00D LS04 000D IS0 4 0
for each period  for each penod  lor each peried for aach penod
31,115 2.035 1.038 3 583
77,246 398 1878 3883
USD £ 000 USD 4, 000 USDr 4,000 S0 4,000
per year por yoar par yoar par yoar
49,115 3. 468 3,088 3683
2,383 7 307 3,535
ush 25 Ua 25 US0D 25 Usn 25
87 028 10,658 o5 1. 550
1,785 B0 - 1.400
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* Presented in statement of comprehensive income as sundry expenses,

' Minimum administration and custodian fee were waived during the year/period,
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Bazers Global Publc Funds Seqes Open-ended Fund Company

Financial ialements for e pear anded 37 Decamber 20024

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continuad)

Bank balances

Certain bank accounts are maintained with CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited. The bank
balances as at year/parod and date, interast income earned and bank charges incurmed
during the year/penod are as below.

Bank balances as of yesr end

Inkevasl income earnad during the
ymar

Inkerest recanvable at tha year and

Bank charges nowred during ihe
year

Bank balances as of yeanpakod
&nd

interaal income eamned duning 1he
yaarparicd

Iniesmst recaivabie & the
yearpericd end

Bank charges nowred during the
yaan pericd

— 2024
Bosera Groafar Bocara Siable
Ching imeorma 18-
Bosera Hong Enhanced Bosera LSO Moath Inferval
Hiarsg Equty Relurn Bond Monay Markel Ciffaring Bovd
Plus Faag Fund Fiand Fund = I
HED ush usD ush
358014 66.201 0700 383 ;02
&, 248 2 851 62 454 17,735
- - 3.709 42
11,443 7.914 180 708 2,901
2023
Bosera Greater Bozeras Sable
Hosara feal China ineomp 18-
Hang Kong Entanced Bosera USD Month fnfarval
Exaniy’ Plors Rdurn Bord Mpnay Marial Offaring Bana
Fund Fund Fund Fund = |
HED Ush Uso usnD
3M0.5T8 355,451 17,657 812 106,638
5 BBR 35 824 11,885 18 104
= 16 &0 411
§.038 8,207 I 40 1.037
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Beasva Giobal Pubie Funds Seres Open-ended Fund
Fnancial saiemenks Dy ihe yesr enced 1) Decamber 2024

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)

Brokerage

During the year ending 2024, Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund and
Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - | utilise the brokerage
services of CME International Capital Corporation Limited, which are wholly-owned
subsidiary of tha Manager's substantial shareholder, in the ordinary course of its investmant
sales and purchases activities. During the year/period ending 2023, Bosera Grealer China
Enhanced Return Bond Fund, Bosera USD Money Market Fund and Bosera Stable Income
18-Month interval Offering Bond Fund = | utilise the brokerage services of CME Intarnaticnal
Capital Corporation Limited. Information relating to these transactions are as below:

2024
Bosera Grealer  Bosera Stable
China Income 18-
Enhanced  Month Interval
Retum Band Offering Bond
Fund Find =1
UsD UsD
Purchases and sales of securities using CMB
International Capital Corporation Limited 1,884 979 202,020
Percentage of total transactions during the year 1.79% 0.55%

Total commizsion incurred s
Average commission rate -

a1

=



Bogara Global Pubie Funds Senes Dpei-ended Fund Company
Finamzial alafemes far the year anded 31 Decambar 2024

6 Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)

{e) Brokerage (continued)

Purchases and sales of securities using
CME International Capltal Corporation
Lirmited

Percentage of total fransactions during
the veanperiod

Total commission incurred
Average commission rate

Purchases and sales of securities using China Merchants Securities (HK)

Cao., Limited

Percentage of total transactions during tha year

Total commission incurred
Average commission rate

2023
Bosera Greafer Bosera Stabip
China Enhanced Bozera USD  income 18-Manth
Retum Bond Movay Mardal interval Offering
Fun Furid Barid Fuad - |
LUsD usD UsD
15,040 268 11,668, 758 TAT.220
11.80% 1.47% 6.28%

11,513

0,05% -
2023
Bosera USD
Money Market
Fund
LUsD
17,589,370
2.22%
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Bozera Globad Fubiic Fime's Seres Open-ended Fund Company
Financisd sialermanis for [ve pear snded 31 Decambeer 2024

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)
Holdings in the Sub-funds

During the year/pericd ending 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the following
related parties/Connected Persons had imvesled in the Sub-funds, Details of the
transactions during the year/period and balance as at year/period end are shown below:

fsat 31 Decamber 2024

Boseva Slable
Boders Grealer Incovms 18-Man
Bozera MHong Rong Chirm Enhanced Bagers LI5S0 Money infansal Qffarng
Equity Pius Fund Faturn Bond Fung Markat Furd Beval Fund - |
Rplafeg shareholders

= CMB internadional Secunities
Lad

Mumbes of shares hedd as ol
yEar - ae2 122 28,050 B34

Market value of shares heid
as ab yaar LS 5 B4G.E30 WED 28RT04, 174

- Bosera AM {int] Coo.Lid-
Chent Cash-Cash

Mumber of shares held ns at
yoar 1,187 & Bak 5,059 24y 206

Market vaue of shanes heid
23 al year usoaen USD 100644 USD 57353120 UED 1311

- China Meechants SPC -
gmuumﬂﬂm

Miwenibesr of shares held s 2l
yia - 3,000,000 -

Market valun of shares heid
a5 & yaar LIS 4 052 878

- Clena Menchants Socunies
(HE) C, Limbeed

turmier af shares hekd as al
year . . 610,840

Warkel value of shares helkd
BE Al yoar - . LISy 6 B3 472
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Bozera Gioba' Public Funds Sanes Opsn-andad Fund Company
Firancinl sammants for e mar anded J1 Dacamber 2024

6 Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)
()  Holdings in the Sub-funds [continued)

Bogera Shadir
Bogara Groader facomes 18-Manih
Eguiy Plug Fung Reiurn Bond Furd Mok Fung Bond Find = |
Ruisled shoreholdors

- CHBHE ACFA BESF SPC-
Besara LIS0 Short Term
Linuidity Mgt Fund 5P

Musriber ol shanes hald s al
i - - 1, 74T 803 -

Maros! value of shares held
s al year - - WS 10 660457 T

- CMBHK ASFA BOSF BPC-
Boseva Stabie kncome
Fund &P

Suribar ol shares hekd & ol
Eal . - TAT SN -

Marked value of shargs hakd
a5 al year g - LS B, 430,582 a

- CMBHHK ASFA BOSERA
GLOSAL SELECT
FUMDS SPC-ASER

Murmiber of shares held as at
ea . . 15,952,678 X

Markel value of shares hald
a5 Al yea . - USD 181,265 994 -

- CMEHK ASFA BOSERA
GLOBAL SELECT
FUNDS SPC-BEBF2

Mumber of thares hald as ab
yaar . . 1,833 504 -

Market valoe of shres haig
a5 @l pear = - IS0 18,564 861 -

- CMBEVALT FOR AT OF
BiFG ER BF-CU AL

Mumber of shares held a3 &l
e 5 > 61 550

Mot valul of ghanes Feid
&4 &l yoar = = LD O, Taa e




(1 Holdings in the Sub-funds {continued)

Sazprg Gipha Poblc Funds Sened Opsn-sndhed Fund Comparsy
Fnancial siplerments for e pear ended 3T December 2034

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)

- CMBWLT FOR AC OF BSR
51 18M I0BF OFC-1

humiber of shanss hald a2 at
waar

ke value of shares held
a5 Bl yeat

- Bosera G& F 5PC-Bosera

UEBUIIM Fund 1 5F

Mumber of hares hekd a5 ol
yaar

Markel valuss of shuess hald
as al year

- CMB Wing Lung
(Nominges) Limiled
busnbes of shares held as at

yhar

Market vaive of shres held
a5 of year

ot
Batary Stable
Eosara (realnr ircoumer 16-Nanfl
Beeral Hong Kong China Enmarced Bosers LASD Maney Inlnrval Diprng
Equity Plus Fond Return Bong Fund Marse? Fung Bond Fumf =}
1,580
= USH 15448 -
: BET A3 .
USD 2,550,012
. 208 BE GaT
B - 50 3,793 524,156 -
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Bozera Giobal Pubic Funds Sanes Opan-anded Fund Company
Financinl stafemars far the pear aviced 371 Decearmber 2024

6 Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons [continued)

{1 Holdings in the Sub-funds {continued)
As at 31 December 2023

S0

Bosera Zeal Hong Basera Grealer
Hong Equdy Ples Ching Enfanced  Bosers UED Money
Fuag Rahrn Band Furoad Marks! Eund
Relafed sharoholders
‘mﬂw- Senirities

Ruinbear of Lhanss hald 52 at
yRarpariad snd - 21,155, a5 4. B4 G20

Bosers Slabe
incame 18-Worth

Bond Fund = |

kil valus of shnies held
o8 al yeanperod evd £ LSO 38 268, 204 USD 160 212 288

= A Cirnclor of the Company
and fhr Manager

Fasmbeer of shanes held as Bl
yeanpaniod end = . 103 BES

Marked value of shanes haig
Af a1 yRATParad e WSO, 118 084

= & Lwreclor of the Gompany
and e IManager

Mummizar ot shares Feld as al
yearipasing and - . E¥.a80

Markel vaiue of shares held
@3 & yearfperiod end - . LD B4, 205

- Bosera AN (Inl) CoLig-
Liank Cash-Cash

Mumiper of shares held os al
et red 1,187 100 7,303,055

12000

Marked vahu of shares heid
s al ymarfperiod and U508 134 S0 1,003 L3 TR 407,772

LaD 33 235
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Ecgers Global Publc Fungs Senes Dpen-ended Fund Company
Firancia! sislemenis for ihe year encied 31 December 2054

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)

Hoidings in the Sub-funds [continued)

Refated shanshalders

- Zhing Mprchants SPC -
?p-uﬂhﬂmi-lHnr:m

Murrnar of Rhansd Mol a8 a0
e

Market volue of shares beld
85 al yeariperiod and

- China Merchants Secuntios
(1K) G, Lirmited

Wurriber of ahaves hald as al
o pariod and

Marke! value of shares held
0% at yesripaiod end

- CMBHE ACFA BGSF SPC-
Bosera Afvaniage Salect
Bond TP

heumbes of thares head as ot
yeariperiod ent

Market value of shares held
a8 af yearserod end

- CMBHK AGFA BGSF SPE-
Bosera USD Shor Term
Liquedity Mgl Fund SP

Musnbset af shares hekd a3 st
yewpa o and

Marked value of shanes noig
a5 al yeariperiod end

Badara SIALR

Bcsera Teal Hong Bosera Grasiar frciome 3 5-Manit
Koy Equaity Pius Ching Enhanced  Basara US0 Hmlj.r irttenyal Offaning
Epnd' Feturn Boed Fund Bong Furd = |

3000 305 -

L S0 N 08 180 x

2 03 G2

LS00 8956 208

2871 585

WIS 30,878 553

1,671 0BG

USD 17,5974 6

o7



Boseva Giobal Pirbls Funds Seres Open-anded Fung Companny
Enanciad stademenis for the yeer ented 31 December 2034

&  Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)
ffl  Holdings in the Sub-funds {continued)

Bosara Stabie
Bosera Zeal Hong Bazera Greanar iacame TH-enih
Mong Equity Plus China Enfanced  Bagera LI5S0 Money Infwrval Qffwving
Fexnd Raturn Band Fung Mawka! Eund B Fangd — 1
Ralated sharahoiders

- CMBHE ASFA BEGSF 5PE-
Bosera Slabie Income
Fund 39

Mumber of shangs hoid a5 al
yearperiod end - - 1332222

Marka! valiss of shaes Rk
a6 Ab peapeicd g - ' UED 14 324 582

- CMIEHK ASF A Bosera Global
Seedl Funds SPC-Dosera
#Emm Incsema Furd 2

Numbed of shanes held as al
yeatiperiod end - - 4 H15E34

iarknt valus of shares hakd
a8 at yaarisnod prd : ; LIS 47 480,808

- CMIBHK ASFA BOSERA
GLDBAL SELECT FUNLS
LPC-BSEF

Manber of shares hald a8 ot
yaaripariad eng : . 8 716,585

Markot valee of shares hokd
o5 i yearpenod end - - LSO T2 218 406

— T e




Bozers Global Publc Fungs Seres Open-endpd Fund Campany
Firancial siatemexs for the year ended 17 Decembar 3004

&  Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)

{fl  Holdings in the Sub-funds (continued)

FilF<]
Bodesn Jlake
Dasaca Taal Hong Aotara Greater fcoume 15-Masih
K Equilly Para Charag Enfanced Bozera UED Money inferval Ofpnng
Fumd Fwtirn Bord Fund Marived Fung Bond Fund = i

Related sharchalders

- CMBHEK ASFA BOSERA
GLOSAL SELECT FUNDS
SPC-Boara

Humibar of shamse hald a8
PRAN DR B : . 10,433,073 -

Warkel volue ol shargs held as

- CR-Bos ara Enhanded
Incama Fund 3 52

Humber of shares held as al
peaiipeiod end = - 812082 -

idarksi valum of shares helkd as
o yearfperiod and . . US0 8,624,311 .

- Brbrd 5 FO SPC-Bosera
LUISD Liqusdity Fund 1 5P

Hurrihar of shanes hald as at
yeanperod end - - Z.035 828 .

WMarkel value of shargs hekd
25 Al yeaeippnod grgd - - USD 21, 880 038

- CME Wing Lung (Momirsas)
Liendad

teumbgr of shargs hold s at
year penod ent . : 123,875 585

Markat walisn of ahes ekl
85 Al weaniperiod end - . S0 524 508, 7

[
i
[
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|
I
[ i - i |
l
I
I
I
l
l
|
|




1]

(@)

Beaeva Giobal Pindic Fungs Seoes

Fund Company

Fingncial sielemenis for e year anded 31 Oecamber 2024

Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)

Investments

During the year 2024, Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund, Bosara USD
Money Market Fund and Bosera Stable Incoma 18-Manth Interval Offering Bond Fund - |
made investmeants in Bosera funds. (2023; Bosera Hong Kong Equity Pius Fundmade
investments in China Merchants Bank, which is a connected person to the Manager), Details
of such investmeanls hald as at year/pericd end dale and distribution income earned by the
Sub-funds from these investments are shown below:

2024

Basera Hong Kang
Equfy Plus Fund

- BOSERA USD MONEY
MARKET FUND-CLASS
& us0

Pertfolic holdings (thares]
Markat vakie

% of el pasels ol ke
Sub-funds

Dividend income camed
duding the year

- BOGERA HED MOMNEY
MARKET ETF-UHLISTED
CLAES § HKD SHARES

Parifalia holdings (shanes)
Moriost value

5% of repl saseks of 1he
Sub-funds

Difvidend income samad
cuiring 1he year

- BOSERA USD MMET
ETF - USD

Portiglo holdings (shares)

Ao value

% of nel ssselds of (he
Suiy-Tunds.

Divichend iras eusired
duiring the year

= BOSERA USD MONEY
MARKET ETF [CLASS
5 USD

Portinlio holdings {shares)

Markol value

% of ned assels of the
Sub-funds

Dovidend incame eamed

during the year

Bogsrs Grdaher
China Enhanced
Radurn Bond Fund

Bogera US0 Money
Marke) Fong

51,930
UsED 703 785

SA6%

25087
S0 455,810

30465

2 A
USD 2618604

0.03%

0. 0o, (=)
USD 10,818,100

0.14%

60

Basera Stable
ifacoume 18.Mantn
idared! Gifang
Band Fund -/

1358
LIE0 15448

0. 18%



Sosgra Global Public Funds Seres Open-ended Fund Company

Financis statements for e pear anded 2T Decamber 203

6  Transactions with Manager, the Custodian and Connected Persons (continued)

{g) Investments (continued)

2023
Basera Slatie
Bagers Taai Hang Bozera Grealer income 18-Monily
Kong Etuly Plus China Enhanced  Sosern UED Money interve Ofenng
Fund Return Bovnd Fund Marke? Fund Band Fund - |
China Merchants Bank
Poriclic holdings (ahanes) 2 300
Markat valg HIKD 70150
"% of net assets af 1he
Sub. funds 050%
Divicarsd incoma samed
during thi: yeaiipeiod HED 4,373
7 Cash and cash equivalents
Bosera Grealter Bosera Stable
Bosera Homg Chiina Income 18-
Haong Equity Enhanced Bosera USD  Manth inferval
Plus Relum Bond  Money Markel  Ofening Bond
Fumd Fend Fund Find = |
2024 2024 2024 2024
HKLD LD LUsh wsD
Cash al banks 358,014 BE201 1,246,040 4095 383,802
Fixed deposits with original
maturity wilhin three months = = 21B4,003 708 -
458,014 B5.201 3430053203 383,802
Boseva Greater Bosera Slable
Bazera Zeal China fncome 18-
Mo Kong Enfanced Bosera USD  Mondh Inferneal
Equity Pluzs Relwn Band  Momay Marked — Offermg Bond
Find Fund Fiir Fund = |
2023 2023 2023 2023
HKD uso UsD uso
Cash at banks 340,579 355,451 415,298 195 106,638
Fixed deposits with criginal
maturily within three maonths . = 1,010,751.507 -
340,579 365451  1.425.049,702 106,638

The balances represent cash and fixed deposits with original maturity within three months
held with banks. The balances are interest-bearing.
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Basera Glabad Public Frads Serws Open-enced Fung Company
Financial stalernens for the year ended 31 December 2024

Capital management and shares in issue

The Sub-funds’ capital is represantad by “nel assels alfributable to shareholders™ and is
claszified as financil liabilities as at 31 Decembear 2024 and 31 Dacember 2023 in the
statemant of financial position. Subscriptions and redemptions of shares during the
year/period are shown in the statemant of changes in net assels atinibutable to shareholders.
In order to achieve the investment objectives, the Sub-funds endeavor o invest thair capital
in accordance with the investment policies as outlined in note 1 and risk management
policies as outlined in note 10, whilst maintaining sufficient liquidity 1o meet redemption
requests and other Sub-funds’ liabilities. Such liquidity is augmented by the holding of liquid
invesimeants

Different classes of shares may be offered for the Sub-funds. Each class of shares may be
denominated in a different class currency or may have different charging strecture or class
specific labilities with the resulf thal the net asset value attributable to each class of shares
of the Sub-funds may differ. In addition, each class of shares may ba subject to differant
minimum initial subscription amount, minimum subsegquent subscnption amount, MinMum
holding amount and minimum redemption amount. At the end of the raporting yearperiod,
the shares in issue and net asset value per share of each class is as follows:

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund

2024 2023
Class - A HKD
Sharas in issue 350,000 TE0,000
MNAV per share HED 71367 HEKD B.5260
Clags - A USD
Shares in issue 50,000 100,000
MAV par share uso 71506 USD B.5120
Class - 3 USD
Shares in issue 1,187 1,187
MAV par share uspD 7.5837 USD G.7755




Bossra Gickal Publc Funds Senes Open-ended Fund Company
Finarcisd stadements for e pear anced 31 Decamber 202

8 Capital management and shares in issue (continued)
Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund
2024
Class - A HKD

Shares in issue .
MNAV per share HKD -

Class - A HKD - MDis

Shares in issue 1,003,360
MAY per share HED B.GaTO

Class - A RMB

Shares in issue 67 553
MAN per share RMB 11.7253

Class - A LUSD

MAY par shars s 'Fu.‘lfﬂ
Class - A USD - MDis

Shares in issus 549 150
MAY per share Ush g.6432

Class - | HKD

Shares in issue 3,000,000
MAY per share HKD 10.7172

Clags - | USD

Shares in issue 99,414
NAW per share ush 10.3361

Class - 5 USD

Shares in issue 23,666
NAV per share LsD 105414

[
I
I
[
I
I
I
|
| Sharos n osue 127018
|
I
I
I
I
|
|
|

HKD

HKD

RMB

ush

ush

HKD

LUsD

ushD

2023

20,010,575
8.8783

972,804
8.0359

69,357
11.0081

195,482
8.8382

840,452
8.9308

3,000,000
10,3749

89414
89603

100
10.0454




Bogera Giobal Puide Funcs Senes Cpen-enced
Financil atemanis for e pear anded 37 Decamber 208

Capital management and shares in issue (continued)

Bosera USD Money Market Fund

Class - A USD

Shares in issue
MAY par share

Class - | USD

Shares in issue
NAV per share

Class - 5 USD

Shares in issue
MAV per share

Ciass - C USD

Sharas in issue
MNAY per share

Class - N USD

Shares in issue
MNAY per share

usp

ush

usD

UsD

UsD

2024

63,650,881

11.3200

233,108,203
11.3353

21,375,889
11.3644

347,598,564

11.2581

22 689 486
10.7631

Lsh

ush

UsD

usD

uso

Fund

2023

35688172
107277

- TATE T —

71384 824
10.7358

32,810,951
10.7524

118,864,268
10.6850

4,915,760
10.2454



Bosers Giobal Publc Funds Seqes Open-ended Fund Sompany
Financiad siatements for e pear ended 31 December 2024

Capital management and shares in issue (continued)

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund = |

Class - A HKD - MDis

Shares in [ssue
WAV per share

Class - A USD

Zharas in issue
MNAN per share

Class - A USD - MDis

Shares in issue
MA\V per share

Class - 5 USD - MDis

Shares in issue
MAN per share

Clazs - A RME - MDis

Shares in issue
NAN per share

HEKD

usD

UsD

usD

RMEBE

65

2024

2,708 495

10.1845

72825
10.9663

418,113
10.3064

o5
10.4310

200
10.2227

HEKD

uso

UsD

RME

2023

3,411,834

10.0711

9,908

10,3396

400 321
10,1252

2,000
10.1661




Reconciliation of net asset values

Bazers Glabad Puble Funds Senes Open-andsd Fund Company
Firsaacial Siammeants for ihe yedr anded' 17 Dagember 2074

The Manager would like to highlight thal the principles Tor calculating the published share
price as sel out in the Explanaiory Memcrandum are different from those required for
calculating the net assets attributable 1o sharaholders and hence the corresponding net asset
value per unil for financial reporting purposes under IFRSs. The net assels alinbutable o
shareholders as reported in the financial statements are therefore different frem the adjusted
total net assets for valuation purposes al the reporting dates. The reconciliation between the
net assets attributable o shareholders as reporied in the financial statements and the
adjusted total net asset value for valuation purposes is shown as follows:

HMet assels (valued in accordance with
the Explanatory Memarandum)

Adjustment of utnamortised establishment
costs

Het assets a8 reporied in the financial
statemants (valuad In accordance with
IFRS)

Mot assets (valued in accordance with
the Explanatory Memorandum)

Adjusirrent of unamonised establishmant
corsls

Het assets as reported bn the financial
slalements (valued in accordance with
IFRS)

Bosera Gresled Bozevs Stabio

Ching fncame 18-

Bosora Hong Enhanced Bosara USD  Month fntarval
Kong Equlty Refum Bond  Momay Market  Offaning Bong
Piue Fund Fund Fundg Fund -
2024 2024 2024 2024

HED usn UsD Lsn
5,716,387 12,884,423 7,763,420.916 8676835
{82,655 - (3,804) {11,534)
5623 T18 12 884 433 7 TEI 428 112 B, BE5 301
Bosera Greatar Hosara Sfabie

Bosora Zasl China Incoma 18-
Hang Hong Enhanced Besera USD  Monfh infansal
Equily Plus Rafumn Bond  Monay Markel  Offlering Bond
Fung Fiang Fund Fund = |

2023 2023 2022 2023

HKD Lsh Us0 ush
10,351,728 41,856,747  2,823,666,034 d 552 844
(123,473) 5, 0o} [12,388) {15423
10,238,255 41,853 651 2 B3 853 646 BETT4H

Per the Explanaiory Memorandum of Bosera Global Public Funds Series Open-ended Fund
Company, the cosis of establishing the Company and the first sub-fund were charged to and
amortised not more than § accounting pericds of thea first sub-fund. Where subsequent sub-
funds under the Company are establishad, the Manager may detarmine that the unamorised
establishment costs of the Company (if any) or a part thereof may be re-allocated to such
subsequent sub-funds, while the IFRS requires thal preliminary expenses should be

expensed immediately.
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Basers Globy! Puble Fuvnds Spned Do n-pinded Fund Campany
Einpncial slaierments for the yeer enged 31 December 2024

Reconciliation of net asset values (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the remaining unamortisation period and amounts is 22 menths
{2023: 34 months) and HKD&2 668 (2023: HKD1 23 473) for Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus
Fund, 30 months (2023: 42 months) and USD3,804 (2023; USD12,388) for Bosera USD
Money Market Fund and 36 months (2023: 48 months) and USD11,534 (2023: USD15.423)
for Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund = 1. All establishment costs
are amortised and no remaining unamorisation period (2023 36 months) and amounts
(2023: USD5,086) for Bogera Greater China Enhanced Retumn Bond Fund.

Financial instruments and associated risks

The Sub-funds' investing activities expose it to various types of risks that are associated with
the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The Directors delegate the
investment function of the Sub-funds to the Manager. The Manager has set out below the
most mportant types of inancial risks inherent in each type of financial instruments. The
kanager would like to highlight that thie following list of associated risks only sals oul some
of the risks but does not purpar to constitute an exhaustive list of all the risks inharent in an
invastment in the Sub-funds. Shareholders should note that additional information in respect
of risks associated with linancial instruments in the Sub-funds can be found in the Sub-funds’
Explanatory Memorandum.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the and of the reporting
period and the risk management policies employed by the Sub-funds are discussed balow.

Market risk

Market risk embodias the potential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk. The Sub-funds' strategies on the management of market risk
are driven by the Sub-funds’ investment objeciives.

The Sub-funds’ markel risk is managed on a regular basis by the Manager in accordance
with polickes and procedures in place. The Sub-funds' cverzall markel position s monitored
on a daily basis by the Manager. Details of the natura of tha Sub-funds’ invastment portfalios
at tha reparting date are disclosad in the investment report.

Cumancy risk

The Sub-funds hold assets and liablities denominated in currancies other than their
funclional currencies and are therefore exposed to currency risk that the exchange rate of
their functional currencies relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that
has an adverse affact on the fair value of the Sub-funds’ assels and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the Sub-funds’ functional currencies.
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(a) Market risk fcontinued)

Currency nsk (continued)

Boserp Gioba! Publc Funds Seres Openended Fund Company
Financial sisaments for e peer snded 37 Decamber 2624

10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

The fluctuations in the rate of exchange between the currency in which the asset or liability is
denominated and the functional currency could result in an appreciation or depreciation in
the fair value of that asset or liability. The Manager monitors all the Sub-funds’ foreign

currency positions on a regular basis.

Sensitivity analysis

The Sub-funds' nel direct exposure to each currency other than the Sub-funds’ functional
currencies at the reporting date and their estimated impact to the net assets attributable to
shareholders and the change in net assels atinbutable to shareholders from operations for
the yearperiod had the Sub-funds’ funclional currencies weakened by 5% are illustrated

below,

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund

RME

Bosara Greater China Enhanced Return
Bond Fund

RMB

2024 2023
Ezfumialed Eztirnaled
INETERaSE I MEriase M
el aesels nel assals
vl wouE
Nel dwect aflribulable 1y Midl dhrgef  adirmbufalde fo
ENRIELTE sharshoiders T sharehoiders
HED HEKD HEKD HED
83 4 1,514 572 75,7289
a1 4 1,514,572 15, T8

2024

Eslimaled Estimated
FCTEEsE 0 iRCrEnieg in
et assals el pESElE
iU vl
Mt girec!  alirbulabeg fo Nef diregt affnbudsble fo
BEPOSLNE sharehaldars arpbsire  shanshallars
Us0 uso ush usD
105 - 156,213 Tan
108 5 158,253 T.811




Basera Giobal Pirkde Funds Senas Opes-enoed Fund Company
Fivanciad stademenis for the year ended 31 December 2034

10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

{i) Currancy risk (continued)

2023

Estimated

iNCrease m

nat assals

waiue

Maf dirgef  alfbutabie fo
CEDOSLNG shareholders

Esnymated

ANCTRHSE i

nel Fesels

vale

No! direct almbutabie fo
SADOEE shanohokdars

Ls0D usD ush LIS0
Bosera USD Money Marke! Fund
RME - -
—iRd
Eslimated Esftimaed
frcraase i INCrEERE in
nel assels fel assels
Vil valug

Mat direct  adfribulfabie fo
Arpaga sharahokdars

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Inderval
Oiffering Bond Fund — |

RMB

Mot direct atmbuniabie fo
SEPOSLNG sharphaiders
usnD ust

A 5% appreciation of the Sub-funds’ functional curencies against the above currencies
would have resulted in an equal but opposite effect on the financial statements, on the basis

that all other variables remain constant.

As HKD is pegged to USD, the Sub-funds do not expect significant movements in the

USDIHKD exchange rate.
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Eosera Global Public Funds Seoes Open-ended Fund Company
Financiad stadements for e year anded 37 Decaméss 2024

10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

{a) Market risk (continued)

i)

Interest rate sk

Interest rate risk anses from changes in interest rates which may inversely affect the value of
debl instruments and therafore result in potential gain or loss to the Sub-funds. The Sub-
funds have interest bearing liabilities as al year/period end and their interest bearing assets
were imited to bank deposits and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Tha
Sub-funds’ interest rate risk is managed on a regutar basis by the Manager.

The following lables illustrates the interest rate risk exposure of the Sub-funds. It includes
the Sub-funds’ interes! rale sensilivity gaps and the year/period in which the interest bearing
assals and habdities reprice (the earlier of confractual re-pricing or maturity) as at year/period
end.

EBosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund

Az at 31 December 2024

Char T woay Chomr Nonsmieres!
I yoar or loss fio & yaars 5 years paarng Tafal
HED HED HED HED HED
Ansals
Financial aseets a1 fair value
thraugh pralit o ks . . - £.393.382 5,393, 362
Dinvidend recahabie - - . 3126 3108
Oiher recenables and
prapayments - - - 153,014 153,014
Cash ard cash equivalents 358,014 - . - 56 (4
Tosal assels 35-'5 014 - - 5 548 532 & 80T G4
Liabilitses
Administralion and cuslodan
fas payable - - - (400} {424
Managemeni fee payaiie - - - {8,467) {8467
Actrisd axparses and oghar
payabies - - - [284 BT1) [2E54.871)
Toda! labiibes - o - (273 B2B) [273.828)
Total imerest sensitivity gap 358,014
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Bosers (Flobad Fuble Fungs Sevies Open-ended Fund Company
Fnancial sisements for i year ended 37 December 2024

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Market risk {continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2023

Dwar 1 pasr G Nan-inlgmsi
1 yaar o inss to 5 yoars 8 years baamig Tofal
HED HHED HED HED HED
ARARLE
Financial sesets at fair valua
hiough profit or bes BOE,B4D 8,782 sE2 B 650411
it meonivabio - 12 660 12 650
Cwwidant recewvabke - 10,832 110,932
Giher necaivables . 113,503 113.923
Amgants cue from brokars 253,588 = - 353 586
Cash and cash aguivalants 205748 - = 340,570
Tatal aseets Gt 165 06 848 B 820077 10,52 0et
Liabilities
Adminisiration and cusiadian
fea payabls - (E04) (804}
Mara gement fse payabe {13,980) (13.880)
Acchued expenses and athe
payables (268,062) (268 052)
Total liabilities [282.835) (282 836)
Total Intesast sansiivity gap G4 165 B 845

"
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Enancial sialements for ifwe pear onded 37 Deoember 2024

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Bosara Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund

A= at 31 December 2024

O 1 poar it N fidenesi
1 e o ess i 5 ywars 5 ymars beanng Todal
uso uso UED usD =D

FETT
Fingnces| aasats 8t 18 vala

thraugh profit or oss 2,286,748 BLESD.474 403088 1371280 12623 568
Interest mosivabis - - - 171,002 171,002
Other receivables and

prepaymanis 2258 £.458
Amounl due trom bnokers - B0, 180 &0.190
Cash and cash equivalants 88,201 - B8, 01
Tosal asssts 2,361,848 B, 553,474 2403 058 1,624 740 12,043 218
Liabilithos
Agménistration ang cusindian

lea - 14.408) [ A0E)
Amaainl dis s brakan {B5T) (B5T)
Maragemen; fes payadie - - (14.558) [14,558)
Amounls payable an

redemplion of shases . . - (209.417) (504.411)
Accraed axpanses and ather

pay abies - - . (24.762) (34, 782}
Totad kabdilies - - - {258, TE5) {258,796}
Total ingerest sensilivily gap 2381 949 B 555,474 2,403,058
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Bosera Gioba! Pubbc Funds Seres Open-ended Fung
Financial siafernents for the yeer ended 31 December 2024

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Market risk {continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2023

Ovr T ywar Ovar Mon-nigmas
1 yoar of Mss o 5 pears 5 yoars beaning Tl
LS LS UsD UsD UsD
Agsais
Firancial asepts a7 faF valiss
tnrsugh profit or kbas 8,518,309 11,501,270 21,826,820 B4 281 40,860,270
Interest mocakable - - - £32 1012 432012
Cinadend recaaiie . . L 513 (il
Char recoivablos - 437 A37
Amouni dua from brokers 304 227 - - 304 42T
Cash and cash equivalenis 365 451 IRE 489
Total assals T ARRETT 11,5010 870 21 628 E20 1,373,363 #1903 230
Liabilitios
Administralion and cusiodian
lag payabis - - 2.973) {2.873)
Managemsen lae payasle (28.221) (58, 231)
Amounis payable on
redemphicn of sharnes [4.945) {4,545}
Ascrusd axpanses and ather
payabes = (25,430) (35,4300
Total Gabiiics - {138.578) 1138,575)
Tolal Inerest sonsitivily gap 7 A88 277 11,501 870 21,629 820
T3



pe— = e @ e e . . E—— . . O . E— S E— s ey

10
fa)
iy

Bazera Globa! Public Fundls Serfes Open-anded Fung Company
Fnancial siaierments for e year ended 37 Decembor 2004

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Market risk {continued)

Intarest rate risk (continued)

EBosera USD Money Market Fund

A=z at 21 December 2024

Fingncea| assels at far valua
inraugh profit or lass

Inlerest recevably

Amount dua Fom brokers

Dither repervabies and
Frepaymants

Time deposis

Cazh and cash equivalents

Total asseds
Liabslities

Mr:;n'ulrﬂim and custodian

Amoun| due 1o brokers

Managemant fee payable

Accied expanses and other
payables

Total Fabilities

Total Interest sansitivity gap

Ohear F yoar Cwar Mo-intepel
T st o [E55 o 5 pears 5 yoas berming Todnd!
Lso Lso usD UsD Lis0
1,500 468.757 . 13434704 1.803920.48
a - - 45,831 434 45,831 434
2 - - 101 101
= % - 3368 338
£.734. 847 812 = - = 2704847812
2.430.053.200 - - - 3.430,053.203
¥, 755,580 B72 = = 80,288,877 T B15, 556 440
= N - (11,114} (311,114)
= = - (20.000,000) [50,000.003)
= = 2 {1,885, 165) {1,885, 185)
- - - [24,038) {24,038]
= 4 . (52.230,337)  (52,230,337)
= - -
T4
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Boaers Giobal Public Funds Seres Dper-ended Fund
Funancies statemerds foy the yeer ended 11 December 2034

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Market risk [continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2023

Charr F yovaar Oholar Norewifenesi
1 poar o fess o & pears 5 yoas bearing Totad
usD usoD s LS wso
Assols
Financial assels al fair vaive
Ehrough profil of loss 282 997012 - 12,725, 542 277722554
Intaresi recahabie - - 18337 543 18,337 543
Time deposits 1102 124 B0 = 1,702, 124,804
Cash angd cash eguivaients 1426, 049, 702 & 1,425,049, 102
Tolal asscis 2,793,171 615 31,083,085 2,524,734 800
Liabilities
Adminairaibon and Cuslosian
e payabe {104 248} {104 248
Management foe payaba (445 651) (445.4891)
Aceruad axpenaas and oiner
payables {31,017} {31,017)
Talal habites (580,854) (580,954]
Total interest sensifivity gap 2, 783.971.518
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(a)
(Fi}

Bosera Giobal Publc Funds Seres Open-ended Fund Compeny
Fiaancial Satarnents for fhe yeer ended 17 Decambar 2004

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Market risk {confinued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund = |

As at 31 December 2024

Cvar 1 paar Chese Fon-inlamas!
1 yaar or lss o 5 yows 5 poaE Deraving Tola!
usD ush ] ush Lsn
Azsats
Financial agsats at far valus
theough prodit oo ss 5343155 3,557 622 15,448 B 516 525
Indprea] mpoaivasies - - 84,300 &8.300
Oiher recenvabies and
prepaymants - 40,506 40,808
Cash and cash equivalanis 353 902 - 333,802
Talsl sesatls 5 T2T 057 3 557 622 122 B84 B AQT B33
Liatilities
Admingiration and cusiocian
foir vyl (12,017} {120
Management fee payabie (4,538) [4.538)
Payables undar sale and
repurchas e sgreaments {701, 028) (01 026
Accrneed expenges and other
Dayanles - [24,B4T) {24 84T
Tatal liabil fies {701 038) - [41,203) (T42,233)
Tolal interast sensilivity gap B T2ATDET 2,856 883 -
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fa)
(i)

Hexers Glaba! Prbhle Funds Senes Open-anded Fund Company
Financial stadamants for e year encad 31 Decamiber 2024

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Market risk {continued)
interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2023

Chaer 1 jar Owar Mar-ffemesi
1 year or /55 fo % yoars & yeas Beanag Totai
uso uso UsD uso LEED
ASEEIS
Financial assels gl fair value
through profit or koss 5 2232 465 1,538 &34 4 333 ATT a 11,084 676
Indarest receivabis - - - 113,784 113,704
Oinar recalvasies - aT.435 ir.435
Cash ang cash equmvalenis 108,838 - . 106 B3B
Tolsd pssais 5,320 103 1,530 534 4 33377 141, 229 11,342 543
Liabilties
Adminisiration and cusledian
foe payabie 15,835) (5,835
Managemen] lee payabhe - 4,072) (4,073
Payabies undar sale and
FEOUMCNESE B eBmanls 12,546, 477] {152, 289) = 12,568, T45]
Accrued axpenses and ather
payatas - - [58,588) 56, BEE)
Tolal habdities {2,548 477} (152 2E8) {66 378 (2,765, 122F)
Total inferest sansilivity gag Z,7a2 828 1,387 585 4 T2 AFT

The Sub-funds have invesied in debl securities whosa values are driven significantly by
changes in interest rates, the Sub-funds are subject to interast rate risk. When interest rates
rise, the value of debt securities will normally fall because new debt securities will pay a
higher rate of interest. In contrast, if interest rates fall, then the value of the debt securities
will normally rise. The Manager regularly assesses the economic condition and monitor

changes in interest rates outlook to control the Impact of interast rate nisk

i



Bozera Gichal Publc Funds Seres Open-andad Fund Company
Financia' staaments for ihe year anced I7 Decamber 2024

10
(a)

(i) Interest rate risk {(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Financial instruments and associated risks {continued)

Al yearperod end, the relevant markel interest rates have been increased by a certain
percentage with all other variables held consiant, the estimated impact on the nel assets
afttributable to shareholders and the change in net assets attributable to sharehobders from
operations for the yearperiod are shown in the table below,

2024

Eosers Greater Bosere Siabka

China incovme 18-

Bosery Hong Enfgnged Bozera USD Month iinferval

Kong Egquly  Retum Bond  Monsy Marmket  Offering Bong

Plus Fund Fund Fund Frng - |

HEKD usp ushH usn
Estimated gacraasa in nat assais value
aftributable to sharshodars if mbarest

rate had increased by 100 basis poinls {308,023 (3,254 4800 {88.297)

f023

Basara Grime Baxara Statile

Sosare Jeal Chirue Inegrme 18-

Hong Kong Erhanced Bogers USD  Monfh Inferval

Equily Plug Retun Band  Money Marke!  Offening Bond

Fund Fung Fund Fumd = I

HED usD UsD Ush
Estimated decrease in nel ssoeis valee
atvibulabis fo shanshaldens if inlenes

rate had increasad by 100 basis points (12 565} (2187 301) (326,128} (BB 222}

The Sub-funds also has interesi-bearing bank deposits which the inlerest rales movement
will not have significant fair value impact on the net asset value and therefore no sensitivity

analysis on bank deposits is presanted.

[



Bodeva Giobal Purbds Funds Senes Open-anded Fund Company
Financial sratemens e ihe el snded 37 Dacambar 2024

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Markei risk {continued)
Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of tha financial instrument will fluctuate as a
rasult of changes in market prices other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency
risk, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment or its issuer or factors
affecting all instruments traded in the market

The breakdown of investments held by the Sub-funds is shown in the investment repor.

The Sub-funds are exposed to price risk arising from changes in market prices of equity
instruments and funds as at 31 December 2024, Except Bosara Stable income 18-Manth
Interval Offering Bond Fund - 1. the Sub-funds are exposed to price risk arising from changes
in market prices of equity instruments, equity funds and markel prices of the underlying
indicas or assets of derivatives as at 31 December 2023.

Frice risk could be managed by careful gelection of financal instrumenis and constructing a
diversified porifolio across different geographical locations and trading on different markets in
accordance with the investment objectives and policies of the Funds.

Sensitivily analvsis

As al the reporting date, the invesiments in equity instruments, collective investment
schemes and future held by each sub-fund was as follows. A 20% increase in prices of the
invesiments held by each sub-fund as at the reporting date, with all other variablas held
constant, would have increasedf{decreased) the nel assets attributable to sharehobdears of

the respective Sub-funds and the changes in net assets attributable to sharsholders by the
amounts shown below,
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fa)
(i}

Bosera Global Public Funds Sedss Opern-anded Fund Company
Firdncil statamants for he yaar snced T1 December 2054

Financial Instruments and associated risks (continued)
Market risk {continued)
Oiher price risk (confinued)

Hosers Hazera Stahie
Greaher Ching Incama 18-
Bogara Hong Emhancod Bosora USD  Maonth (nterval
Kiong Equity Reium Bord  Monay Marke! Offering Bond
Pius Fund Fund Fund Fund = |
2024 2024 2024 2024
HKD uso LSsD usD
Investments market
EXPOSUMES
Equities 5,383,302 177 585 . -
Funds - 1,183 705 13434, 704 15 448
5.393 392 1.371,280 13,434 704 15 448
Increase i net assels and
changeas in nel assets
atinbutable to
sharehciders 1,078 678 274 258 2. 685 841 3,080

Basora feal Bosora Groator
Hong Kong  China Enhanced Bosera USD
Equity Flus Return Band Maonay Market

Frind Fund Fund
2023 2023 2023
HED usD Ush
Investments market exposures
Equities B TB2 562 840 281 -
Equity funds - - 12,725,542
8,782,562 940,281 12,725,042
Increase in nat assels and changes
in net assets attribulable to
shareholders 1,756 512 188,058 2,545,108

An aqual change in the opposie direction would have decreasad the net assete aliributable
io shareholders and the changes in net assels atinbutable o shareholders by equal
amounts.

80
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(b)

Baszers Glabal Puble Funds Serfes Open-ended Fund Campany
Firancial sialevnents kv ihe year onded 37 Decembar 2024

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Credit risk and counterparty risk

Credit nsk is the rigk that a counterpariy or an issuer will be unable to pay amounts in full
whean due. All fransactions In investments are seftlad on a delivery versus payment basis
using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities
sold is only made when the Custodian has received payments.

For purchase lransactions, payments are made once securities have been received by the
Custodian, The trade will fail if ether party fails to meet their obligation,

The Manager monitors the Sub-funds’ credit position on a regular basis. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represenied by the carmying amount of each financial asset in the
staiement of assets and liabilties.

Amounts arising from ECLs

ECLs on amounts due from brokers, dividends receivable, interest receivable, other
receivables, time deposits and cash and cash equivalents have been measured on a 12-
manth expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Sub-funds
consider that these exposures have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the
counterparties and the issuers.

The Sub-funds monitor changes in eredit risk on these exposures by tracking published
extamal credit ratings of the counterparties and the issuers. To determine whether published
ratings remain up to date and to assess whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk at the reporting date thal has mot been reflected in the published ratings, the Sub-
funds supplement this by reviewing changes in bond yields, where available and regulatory
information about counterpartes and the issuars

The Manager considars the probability of the counterparties and/for issuars not baing able to
pay is minimal as they have capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term
and thus there is no ECLs recognised on amounts due from brokers, dividends receivable,
interest receivable, other receivablaes, ime deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
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Bogera Giobal Pitdc Funds Sares Open-anded Fund Company
Enancial stafements for the pear ended 37 December 20X

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Credil risk and counterparty risk (continued)

Cradit rating category of dabt securilies

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Sub-funds invested in debt secirities
with the following credit ralings. The table below summarizes the credit rating of the debt

securities categorized by the rating agencies:

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund
Portfolio by credit rating category of debt securities

Invesiment grade

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund
FPortfolio by credit rating category of debt securities
Investment grade

Speculative grade
Unrated

Bosera USD Money Market Fund
Portfolio by credit rating category of debt securities

Invesiment grade

8z

2024 2023

% %
100.00%

100.00%

2024 2023

% %
58.27T% 8127%
33.76% 13.28%
7.87% 5.45%
100.00% 100.00%
2024 2023

% %
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%;




Bogera Global Fublic Funds Seviaz Open-snded Fund Company
Fivancial sradements for e pear ended 51 Decembar 2024

10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
{b) Credit risk and counterparly risk {continued)
2024 2023
Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering
Bond Fund - |
Portfolio by credit rating category of debt securities
Investment grade 76.81% 83.79%

Speculative grade 11.08% 9.00%
Unrated 12.11% T.21%

100.00% 100.00%

counterparty 15 equivalent 1o the globally undarstood definition of ‘investment grade’. The
sub-fund considers this to be Baa3 or higher per Moody's, BBB- or higher per Standard &
Poor's and BBE- or higher per Fitch,

The Sub-funds’ investments are held by Cusglodian. Bankrupley or insolvency of the
Custodian may cause to Sub-funds’ execution of thair rights with respect o the assets held

by the Custodian lo be dalayed or limited. The Manager monitors the credit guality of the
Custodian on an on-going basis.

All of the cash held by the Sub-funds are deposited with the Banks. Bankrupley or insolvency
of the Banks may cause the Sub-funds’ rights with respect to the cash held by the Banks to
be delayed or limited. The Sub-funds monitor the credit rating of the Banks on an ongoing
basis. The credit ratings of the Banks, the Custodians as determined by Moody's as at year
end are all Baa3 or above.

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - | enters into repurchase
agreament with cerlain financial institubions. The Manager monitors the credit guality of the
financial mstitutions on an on-going basis. As at year end 31 December 2024, the fund only
has exposures with the counlerparty J.F. Morgan Securities plc. The credit rating of J.P.
Morgan Securities plc as determined by Moody's as at year end is Aa3.

() Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the risk that the Sub-funds may not be able to convart investments
into cash to mesat iquidity needs in a timely manner. The Sub-funds’ exposure (o lgubdity
risk anses because of the possibility that the Sub-funds could be required to pay its labilites
or redeam its sharas earlier than expacted. The Sub-funds are exposed lo daily cash
redemption of its redeamable gshares. Shares are redeemable at the shareholders’ option

I The sub-fund considers a financial asseal o have low credit risk when the credit rating of the
based on the Sub-funds’ net asset value per share at the time of redemption.




Bozsra Giobal Prhllk Fimds Senes Open-anded Fund Company
Financid stalements for e pear ented 37 December 2024

10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

{c) Liguidity risk {comtinued)

The Sub-funds’ policy is o reguiarly manilor current and expected liguidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities to meet its liquidity requiremeants in the short and long-term.

The Sub-funds invest the majority of assets in investments that are traded in an active
market and short-term, highly liguid invesiments that are readily converlible into known
amounts of cash or can be readily disposed of. The Manager monitors the Sub-funds'

kquidity position on a regular basis.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilthes at the reporting

date.

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund

As at 3 Docembar 2024 Confraciuel cash fows
103 3 months o More [han No siated
months T wear 1 poar iy Talaf
HED HKD HKD HED HED
| .
Administration and custodian
fee payable 400 410
Managemeni fee payabis & 45T BagT
Acorued expenses and olhes
payables 264 871 . oA BT
Financial Kability-Mei assels
altribitabls 10 sharehosders - - S633TIE 6,055 T18
Total 2ruEge = 583371 5,007 545
As at 3T December 2023 Rows
g3  3montsio Mare than Mo staled
months 1 year 1 ywar ety Tota
H®D HED HED HEKD HED
Financal kabilties
Adminisiration and custodian
s payable Lt B0
Management fee payable 13880 13,580
Accrued expenses and olher
payatles 258052 2R OR2
Financial iabilty-Net azsels
atributable to shareholders® 10,238 285 10,208, 255
Total SRR HEE 10,238 255 10,521,021

*  Subject to the liquidity terms of the company as outlined by the explanatory memorandum



Bogava Global Finlwe Fumgs Sermes Opea-ented Fung
Fingrcis ialemenia for e pear anded 31 Decaember 204

10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
{c) Liquidity risk {continved)

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund

Ag &t 3 Decamber 2024 Confraciuy cash fows
Thad J monthg fo Mova han e shadnd
months T yea 1 yasr maturfy Todal
usD usn LESCY s0 s
|
Adminigiration and custodian
fas payabis &, 408 - . . 4,408
Amount dua o Brokerns 857 - : . LTy
Managamen! e payahis 14 558 - . . 14 558
Ampunis payable on
redemption of shares 04411 . . . 2044117
Accruad expanses and olhes
payables 34 62 - - - 34Tz
Financial liabifty-Mel assels
aitribuiande 1o sharehoddars® . = - 12,584 427 12 664 423
Total 258798 = - 12584 423 12843215
As at 31 December 23 Conltractupl eash oas
flod 3 months o Mowe than NG staleg
manths 1 pear 1 yoar matuity Talat
usD ush 50 uso uso
Einancial kabilities
Adminisralion and cusbod an
e payable LHTI - - . 28T
Managemenl fee payable 5,231 - - ‘ 56 201
Amounts payable on
regernption of shares 4945 - - - 4 45
Accnad expencses and other
payables 35,430 - - - 35430
Finarcial kahilty-Het assels
glirtidable to shareholgers” : = 41,853.651 41,853 651
Tatal 139478 : 41,853 681 41,093,230

*  Bubject to tha liquidity terms of the company as outlined by the explanatory memorandum.



Bozera Giobal Pubic Funds Seres Open-anded Fund Company
Financial siatemens for ihe year dnded 17 Dacambar 204

10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

{e) Liquidity risk {continued)
Bosera USD Money Market Fund

Az at 31 December 2024
Thad 2 months o More than Ma sfated
monhs T yoar f yeor mafurify Tadal
uso UsD UsD Lso Us0
Admengiratan and Cusindian
fee payabie 14 . . 1114
Amount due o brokers £ 000, oG = a B, 00, D00
Managemant fea payable 1,084 1 88 . 1805 188
Agcrued axpansgs and other
payables 4,035 - 24,038
Fimancia® liability-Mat assats
alnbiutabla to shareholders® - T.rE3428.112  T.TE3.428.112
Tatal 52 330,337 - TTe3428.112 7815656 440
Az ar 31 December 2023
frad  3maathsfo Mara Itan M shadi
manthe 1 poar 1 poar iy Tatat
usD Uso S usn s
Einangisl igbities
Adminkstration and Custodian
faa : 104 268 e . 104 248
Management foo payabie 445 501 = = 445891
Accued expanses and ather
payahles 31,017 - - ¥y
Financial Bability-Mel assals
altributabie 10 sharsholdars® . = 2AXIAGEE4E 2 BFS BS53 645
Totad 50 654 - - 2BFIAEREAE  Z.B34 274 BOO
86
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Besers Global Public Funds Seviss Dpesn-anded Fund Company
Financiad statemanis for fe yaar andea 11 December 2024

10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

(el

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund = |

Az ar 31 December 2024

Einangig! isbitios

Agminsiration and Cusiodian
few payabie

Marsgarmenl fee pavable

Payabées undes sake and
repurchase agreemants

Accrued axpensss and oiher
payshies

Financial iabiny-Mal asssts
attnbutabls (o shareholders®

Total

Az ot 31 December 2023

li
Aaminsiration and Custadian

Managameni fee payabie

Payables inder sals and
repurchese agreamenis

Accrued expenses and olher
payables

Financial Eabilty-Met assets
atiributable 1o shareholdars”

Teotal

Can

1M3 3 manths o Mave ihan Mo stated
manifis 1 poar T yoar mafurdy Total
usn UsD Uso Ush Ush
12097 - ! . 2omr
e = . = 4. 538
- TN, 020 E TO 026
4847 24 E4T
B BEES. B.a65 am
41,3103 TO.02% &8 5865301 D407 533

Con i1 i

Thald I momihe o Mpors Man Ao sialed
months 1 year 1 yaar mateify Torai
ush UsD UsD Uso uso
5 E35 5835
4 07 & 072
2,087 677 A5E S0 1652 269 2608 TdE
55,56 55 668
- - BATT AN B.577 4
2154 363 A58 500 182280 BETT AN 11,342,543

87

* Bubiject to the liquidity terms of the company as outlined by the explanatory memorandum.
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Bagzaca Glabal Public Fuads Sanes Open-anded Fund Company
Firanpial siaements for he wear ended 37 Decamber 2024

10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

{d) Offsetting assets and liabilities

The Sub-funds are required to disclose the impact of offsetling assels and liabilities
represented in the staterment of assets and labilities to enable users of the financial
statements io evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial
position for recognised assets and liabilities. These recognised assets and liabilities are
financial instruments and derivative contracts that are either subject to an enforceable master
natting arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of setoff criteria: the
amounts owed by the Sub-funds to another party are determinable, the Sub-funds have the
right to set off the amounts owed with the amounts owed by the other party, the Sub-funds
intends {o setoff, and the Sub-funds’ right of setoff is enforceable at law.

For Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund = |, the repurchase master
agreement do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the statement of assets and liabilities.
This is becausa the fund does not have any currently legally enforceable right 1o set off
recognised amounts, because the right to sat off is enforceable only on the occurmence of
future events such as a default of the Fund or the counterparties or other credit evenls,

As at 31 Decamber 2024 and 31 December 2023, the financial assets and financial llabilities

subject to offsetiing, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements are as
follows:

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - |

Ralated amaounis not offsal
in fhe slatemend of
— 550 ang babiiies
GroEs
amownts of harf
rapognsed  amounis of
financral fwmncial
iabklins fialdites
Sef-oif m prosenied
Groes e i I Ermigracin
amainte of siglernen] stmement  insftrmments
recogpmsnd of asseis of assars {inckicing Cash
financial and &nd Po-cash Callaferal
Habihes iebvias habaas caliafaral) adped Mol amouns
usn usD ush uso Ush ush
b el
Fayaties under salke
and rapurchase
agreemants (701.026) - {70029 101 029 - -
Taotal {701,028 - L0, 0Zs) 7o 029 - =

88



Bosera Giobe' Publc Funds Senes Open-anded Fund Company
Financial siatements for the year anded 31 December 3024

Financial instruments and associated risks [continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities {continued)

Halaied armaunis not offsel
w1 ihe slalamand af
—iEEeE a0d vatutiag
Gross
wnowts of Not
recoged amaunis of
finanaial finamzis
igdniras bahdaifies
sal-oif in Lresenieg
Gross e in the Financial
amotus of Siatemani shafemenl  Vsiramends
racogrised of assels of agsels Cash
financtal and and fon-cash Cofaieral
ligtwiiias liaififias Sahiilips Pledged  Alel amounis
UaD usD Lan uah ush UsD
2023
Payabies under sake
ard repirehass
BOreBMmEents {2,698 748) (2, B98, T4E) 2 898 748 -
Total {2,658 748) (2 B0, T4E) 2658 78 -

Specific instruments
Foreign currency future contracts
Az at 31 December 2024 and 2023

AT AR

89

. fio Sub-funds held the fulure contracts.
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Distribution statement

Amount avallable for distribution at the
beginning of the year

It {panid or payableureceved or
recetvable on imsuance and
redemption of shares
Income befare dsiributions to shareholders
Wilkmalding bax

Ampunt avallabla for distibutons io
shareholoes

Distribubions 1o sharehokdars

Armpant availalbla for distribution
al the end of the yoar

Armount available for distribution at the
beginning of the year/perod

Met (paid or paysbie)raceived or
recahaable on issuancs and
redamplicn of shares

(Leoss)fncame bafone distributions to
sharshcidars

VWithhalding tax

Amaurd avadable fon dsiributions to
sharehoidars

Destributions 1o sharehoiderg

Armounl available for distribution
at the end of the yeanpeniod

Bosera Gipha!' Publc Funds Senes Opep-anded Fung Campany
Financial staiements for the wear enged 31 Dacembar 2024

Hpsern Graatar Hozera Stable

China income 18-

Eoserp Hong Enfamnoed Boserp US0D  Manhh infervl
Koy Equnly Rennm Bond  Meney Markel  OWering Bongd
Plus Eund Fung Fumnd Frng = |
2024 024 2024 20d4

HKD Lz0 UED0 usn

10,238 255 41,853 651 2 B3 B53, 646 BETT 421
(5,582 508} (20583 844]  4B53 121,311 (B3418)
Sog 352 ae1 281 246 851,155 501 068
(10,421 {599 = _
56833 T71B 13,150 BEQ 7. 7634268112 9,015 060
- (455, 285 - {349, 7EB)

5833718 12,684 423 7. a3 426 112 8,865,301
Bozara Grealer Bosers Siable

Sosara Deal Ching fmcorme 18-
Hong Kang Ertanced Bosora USD  Month nferval
Equnty Plus Rdwn Bond  Mongy Markei  Oiffaning Bomd
Flamd Fimnd Fumd FEipnd = i

2023 23 2023 2023

HED usn UsD LsD

12,208 821 B2 708435 1200572438 .
(80,8500 (41.581,301) 1.514,509.628 B 68 455
{1.872.522) 1461, 748 #0471, 380 284 274
(18, 184) (5, 740) - .
10,236 255 42 671,142 2 BZ3 E53 548 B753TH
- [TE7.491) - {176, 308}
10,238,265 41,853,661 28238536458 B.E77. 421

o0
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11 Distribution statement {continued)

Distribution history - Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund

Yasr enoed Yaar anded
— ] December 2024 31 Decamber 2023
Evstnbubom Ex-chadand Llstrabention Ex=thvad
per sharg dale par shang dala
so ush
Class - A USD - MDis
Firsl disiribution per share 0.0450 Qar20a4 00450 LR T dr
Second dstribution per shane 0. DB 002024 0 D450 LE) TR b
Third distribution per shar 0.0484 01002024 0050 010323
Faourth disiribation per shane 0.0=84 a2z 00450 030023
Fifif distribution par shara 0 04sd G202 00450 D05 023
Sixth diiribition par shane 0. Dsdd ODar2n24 0 0a50 01/06/ 3023
Seventh distrioulon per share 00484 DRIOTrA024 00450 DOTFHES
Eignth distribution per share 00484 OORT24 00480 O/ORH02S
Minth disiribution per share 0.0484 Dnoai2024 00450 D40 2023
Tanth desiribution per share 0.0s84 RHD024 0.0450 10102023
Eleventh distribution par share 0.04B84 0 12024 00450 01112023
Twelfth desiribution per share 0.0<84 A iR4 0.0250 franiea
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Bazern Globad Prblc Fumds Seres Opemended Fund Company
Firsancial sisiarments for e pear ended 37 Decamber 2024

Distribution statement (continued)

Distribution history - Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund

Class - A HED - MDis

First dislribution per sharg
Second distibution per sharg
Thord digtribifion pir Shang
Fourth distnbubion per share
Fifth distribution per shane
Sikah distnicubion per shane
Seventh distribution per share
Eighth distribulion par shara
Mindh distnboln per shar
Tenth distrigution per share
Elgrvgnth distribulion pes share
Twalfih distribution par share

Yaar enged
— B G
per shars date

HKD

00480 a0waiza
00450 01020248
Q0a5] 0102024
i Ddg0 O3 D2 024
0 Dasd DEOS2024
L0490 Q0E2024
0 Oated gaar2024
00460 gadar2oz4a
0.0480 Qa0ar20z4g
00280 QEMO2024
Q.0480 0112024
0.0480 22024

gz

Year endgd
per shaf e
HED
00450 0312023
0.0450 0220z
0.0450 o203
00450 A0S
0.0450 OANIS2023
0 o450 A0Ba023
0.0450 03072023
00450 01 FOR2023
0 350 0 D02 S
0 0450 T I023
0050 0111172023
0450 01203023
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Bosery Gioba! Publy Fondy Senes Cpen-ended Fund Company
Financigl stafements for the vear snded 31 Decembar 2024

Distribution statement (continued)

Distribution history - Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - |

Class - A USD - MDis

First gistribidion pas sharg
Second distibuban par share
Third distribution per shang
Fourth disiribution per shane
Fifth gistribution per shane
Sixth distnbution per shane
Seventh dsinibution per shama
Eighth distrioution per share
Hingh distribution per share
Tenth distibution per shang
Elevanth distribution par shars

Twealfth destnbution per shane

Class - A HED - MDis

Firgt digtribudion pes sharg
Sacand distribution par share
Thard destribution ped ahane
Fourth disinbubon per share
Fifth distribution per shane
Sixih distribution per share
Savanth distribution per shane
Exghth distributicn par share
Minth distribution per sham
Terih distribution per share
Eleventh distribution per share
Twelith distribution per share

Yaar anded
ﬂi!rb‘;ui-‘aﬂ : Ex-aiwidand
Pﬂfﬂﬁt;'; date
00350 O201r2024
.50 04022024
0350 0102024
0.0:350 D2/0472024
0.0350 DE/OS 2024
00350 D3/06/2024
0.0350 [xOTa0ed
00350 04/0B 2024
0.03s0 D0a 2024
00350 DES1 Qv
0.0as0 01102024
Qoaso 222024
Disiraation Ex=ghwiihand
par shava oaie
HKD

Q.0350 Q2012024
00350 01022024
00350 01032024
00250 (02024
00350 DEDS2024
00350 DADE2024
Q0350 2ATI2024
00350 /082024
00350 020972024
00380 a8/ 1072024
00350 112024
00280 Qara2024

83

Pariod endad

Distribution Ex-gtvidend
per shang oate

usn
0.0350 DA0TR023
0.0350 01/08r2023
0.0350 D/0ar2023
0.0350 1012023
0.0350 12023
0.0350 0122023
Distribufion Ex-dividond
par ghive date

HED
0.0350 OA0TL2023
0.0330 G1garai23
0.0350 Da/09r2023
0,0350 10/1072023
0.0350 01/1172023
0.0350 0i/12r2023
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Bazera Global Public Funds Seres Open-oraded Fund Company
Financial salsmants for the year ended 30 Decembar 2024

Distribution statement {continued)

Distribution history - Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - |

Clazs - 5 USD - MDis

First distribulian per shang
Second dsinbulbon par shara
Third distribution per shane
Fourth distrbution per shane
Fifth distribution per shara
Sixth distnbution par shara
Seventh dsinbution per sham
Eighth distribution per sharg
Hinth distribution per share
Tenih distibution per shane
Eleventh astribution par shang

Twelfih distnbution per sham

Yaar andad
e
par shea date

UsD

00250 e L e
00350 D024
00350 DO 2024
00350 02/ 04d 2024
00350 DE/05 2024
0.0350 DH/OE 2024
00350 OaTEie4
(0asn O 0B024
Q0350 D0S2024
Q0350 BN 2024
QO350 01172024
000350 021 22024

Period ended
Distributian Ex-crwdong
par share e
S

0.0350 0072023
0.0350 011082023
0.0350 (4082023
0.0350 10102023
0.0350 0112023
0.0350 01/12r2023
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Bospra Gichal Fudhs Fonds Seved Qper-enoid Fung Company
Financiel statements for the year snaed 31 Decemisr 2024

Fair value information

The Sub-funds’ financial instruments are measured at fair value at the reporting date. Fair
value estimates are made al a spacified paint in time, based on market condilions and
information about the financial instruments. Usually, fair values can be reliably determined
within a reasonable range of estimates. For certain other financial instruments including
interest receivable, dividend receivable, amounts due from brokers, other receivables, time
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, amounts due o brokers, managemeant fee payable,
administration and custodian fee payable, payables under sale and repurchase agreements,
accrued expenses and other payables, the carrying amounts approximate fair values due fo
the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.

Valuation of financial instruments

The Sub-funds’ accounting policy on fair value measurements is detailed in significant
accouniing policy in note 2{d}yv}.

The Sub-funds measure fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

= Level 1: Inputs that are quoted markel prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
instrumeants.

- Lewvel 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsarvable either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirecily (i.e. derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for
similar instrumants; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markeis
that are considered less than active; or other valuation technigues in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

- Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which
the valuabon technique includes inpuls not based on observable data and tha
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrumeant’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instrumnents but for which significant unobservable adustments or assumptions
are required to reflect differences between the instruments

When fair values of listed and quoted investments at the reporting date are based on quoted
market prices or binding dealer price quotations in an active market, withoul any deduction
for transaction costs, the instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy, When fair
values of fixed incoma instruments at the reporting date reprasant quoted prices on markets
thal are considerad less than aclive, those fixed income instruments are included within
Level 2 of the hiararchy. Fair values of derivatives are determined by valuation techniques.
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Bozersy Giota! Pubic Funds Seres Operr-ended Fund
Financial siatemnents for e pedr snded 31 Decamber 2024

12 Fair value information (continued)

The following analyses financial instruments at fair value the end of the reperting period, by
the level in the fair value hierarchy infto which the fair value measurement Is categonsed.

Bosera Hong Komng Equity
Plus Fund

As at 31 December 2024

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Equities
Bonds

As at 31 December 2023

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Equities
Bonds

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
HKD HKED HED HKD
5,393,362 - - 5,393,392
2,383,202 - . 5393392
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HKD HKD HKD HKD
B,782 562 - - 8,782 562
- 906,849 - 206,849
B.702.562 906,849 9689 411
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Bosem Grealer China
Enhanced Returm Bond Fund

Az at 31 December 2024

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Equities
Bonds

Collective investment
schemas

As at 31 December 2023

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Equities

Bonds

Sosara Giobol Fubhs Funds Senes Opea-enoed Fund Company

12 Fair value information (continued)

Fnarcred statemes lor the year anoed 31 December 204

Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total
ush uso UsSD LSD

177 585 = - 177,585

- 11,252 278 " 11,252 278

1,193,705 - 1,193,705

177,585 12 445 983 . 12 623 568
Laval 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Total
uso LS LSED LsD
840,281 . - 240 281
__@EM_EE_E 10,840,606 - 39949989
29 840 664 10,949,506 - 40890270
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Boseva USD Momey Marke! Fund

As at 31 December 2024

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Bonds
Cerficate of deposits
Collective investmeni schemeas

A= at 31 December 2023

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Bonds
Cerlificate of deposils
Caollective invesiment schemsas

Begeve Global Pubde Funds Seres Open-ended Fund Company
Finarnce' tatemeniz o ihe year enced 31 December 2024

12 Fair value information (continued)

Leved 1 Lavel 2 Lovel 3 Tolad
uso UsD uso uso

- 384,014,080 384 014,080

= 1208474877 - 1206474 ET7

- 13,434,704 - 13,434 704
1,603,823 461 1,603,823 461

Laval 1 Leaval 2 Leval 3 Talal
usD usD usb usD
76,000,000 - 75,000,000

- 169,097,012 - 189,997 .12

2484 342 10,241,200 - 12,726,542
2484 342 275,238,212 277, 722,554
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Bogera Global Piniie Funds Seves Open-ented Fund

Fair value information (continued)

Fingncial Jraiemenls for ihe e enched 31 December 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tofal
sD LUsD LISD UsD
Bosgm Stabhs incame
18-Month Interval Offenng
Bend Fuind = |
As at 31 December 2024
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Bonds - 8.901.077 - 8,901,077
Collective inwestment
schemes - 15448 - 15,448
- B.916,525 - B8.916,525
Lewvel 1 Leval 2 Level ¥ Total
UsD usD s usoD
As at 31 December 2023
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Bonds T.546,250 3,548 426 = 11,084 876
T.546 250 3,548,426 - 11,084 676

During the year ended 31 December 2024, thera were no transfers between Level 1 and

Level 2, or transfers info or out of Lewel 3,
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Bazera (loba' Feblle Funds Sared Opsn-anciay Fund Company
Financial sialamants for e year anden 37 Decomber Z024

Invalvermnent with unconsolidated structured antities

The Sub-funds have concluded that collective investment schemes in which they invests, but

that it does not consolidate, meet the defintion of structured entities because:

- the voting rights in the investment fund is not dominant nghts in deciding whao contrals
them because they relate to administrative tasks only;

- each investment fund’s activities are restricted by its Explanatory Memaorandum; and

= the investmeant fund has narmow and well-defined objectives to provide investment
opportunities to investors.

The table below describes the types of structured entities that the Sub-funds do not
consalidate but In which it hokds an interast

Type of siructured enfities

Collective investmen!

schemes

To manage assets on behalf of
the investors and eam fees.
Thesa vehicles are financed

Nature and purposa

Interest held by the Fund

through the issues of shares
to investors.

Investments in units
issued by the collective
invastiment schemeas

The table below seis out interests held by the Fund in unconsoldated structured entiies,
The maximum exposura to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held by the

Furnd.

As at 31 December 2024

Eosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund

Structied enfifies

Collective invesimant

schemes

MNumber of
imvasiment fund
invesied by tha
fuind

Bosera USD Money Market Fund

Struciured antilios

Collectve investmeni

achemeas

MNumber of
nvesirmeant fund
invested by the
fund

Totad mef assels
af the streciuned
L
HED

B,130,634,437

Tola! nat assels
af the siuciumed

entity
UsD

158,330,000

100

Camying amotit
e m
irrvesiments al
Fair value through
profit or Joss
HKD

1.193,705

Camying amednt
inciuded in
invesiments al
fair vaile Mhrough
proflf or loss
ush

13,434,704

Carmying amount
as a % of fola
ned assels
aftnbutable fa
sharahaloers

B.26%

Canylng amount
asa % of fofal
fhil Bssels
atirbiulabie (o
Sharahoiders

i0.17%



Gogers Glabal Pubis Funds Savies Dpen-ended Fund Company
Financia! statemens for i yaar angsd 31 December 2024

13 Involvement with unconsolidated structured entities {continued)

Az at 31 December 2024

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund = |

Number of

imsesimeni fund

irmvastad by the

Structered enifies fund
Callective invastmeant

schames 1

As at 21 Dacember 2023

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund

Nismbar af
invostiment fund
investad by the

Strectoned enfifies furied

Callective investmant
SChemes -

Bosera USD Money Market Fund

MNumbar of

dnvasiment i

invested by the

Sirvclurad eniiies fermnad
Callective investmant

schemes 1

Tolal net assefs
off [he sinsciured
enfily
LISD

7,763,426.112

Telal nel assels
of the struclured

enfify
HKD

Tolal el azsels
o the slruclured

eniity
UsSD

11,088,405

Carmying amount
incluted in

imesiments al
fair value through
Pl oF i8S
usD

15,448

Camying amount
included in
imvesimenis ai
fair value through
profil oF f0ss
HKD

Camying amaunt
ancluded in
reesliments al
fair vake Hrowgh
prafil or foss
usD

12,725,542

Camying amount
85 8 % of lofal
i assEE
affrbuiablo fo
sharshalolars

0.18%

Camrping amouni
8z 8 % of lofal
el assels
affribable (o

Carrying amour
as a % of fafal
el assels
atfririable (o
sharehotders

0.45%

During the year/period, except for the amounts invested in tha callective investment
schemes, the Sub-funds did not provide financial suppart to the collective investment
schemes and had no intention of providing financial or other support.

1m



Bozara Giobal Pubic Fuads Sered Oper-anded Fund Canpany
Finpncial 2mievnents for ihe pear dnded 37 Doesprber 2004

|
I_ 14 Repurchase agreements

the normal course of business by which it transfers recognised financial assets to third
parties. In case where the transfermed assels do not qualify for derecognition as the sub fund
has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the sub fund continued to
recognise the transferred assets,

I- Bosera Siable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - | enfers into transactions in

Transferred financial assals that do not qualify for derecognition are debt securities held by
counterparties as collateral under repurchase agreements. The counterparties are allowed
to sell or repledge those securities sold under agreements to repurchase in the absence of
default by the sub fund, but has an obligation to returm the securities at the maturity of the
contraci. Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund = | has determined
that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities and therefore has mot
derecognised them. In addition, it recognises a financial liability for obligation to pay the
repurchase price.

The following lable analyses the carrying amount of the above mentioned financial assels
transferred to third parties that did not qualify for derecognition and their associated financial
liabilities:

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund = |

31 December 2024
Carrying Camying
amourif of amouni of
Transfemed dssocialed
Assels liahilities
ush usD

Repurchase agreements 785,808 701,028

Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of
Transfarred associated
azsels liabilities
usoD S0

Fepurchase agreemenis 3,240,216 2,698 746

The interest rates of the repurchase agreements were 4.57% as at year end 31 December
2024 and ranged from 5.6% to 5.65% as at penod end 31 December 2023.

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
| 31 December 202
I
I
L
|
L
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Bosary Ginha' Pubhc Finds Fenes Open-andipd Fumd Company
Sinancial sipfements for tha yeer ended 37 Dacembar F004

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Custodian makes estimales and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expeciations of future evenis that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustmeant
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next inancial period are outlined
below.

Fair value of invesimenis

The Sub-funds hold a number of unlisted debt securities that are valued by reference to
broker quotes, In determining the fair value of such investments, the Cusiodian exercises
judgmenis and estimates on the sources of brokers and the guanlity and quality of guotes
used. Such quotes adopted 1o fairly value the investments may ba indicative only and not
execulable or lagally binding. As such, broker guotes do not necessarily indicale the price at
which the security could actually be traded as of 31 December 2024. Actual transacted
prices may differ from the quotes provided by the brokers. The Custodian considers that in
the absence of any other reliable market sources, the broker quoles available to them reflect
the best estimate of fair value,

Soft dollar commission

As regards lo the Sub-funds, the Manager has not entered into any soft dollar commission
arrangements during the year ended 31 December 2024,
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Bosera Giobal Publc Funds Senes Openented Fund Company
Financial statemanis for the year ancled 31 December 2024

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2024

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASE has issued a number of
amendments and a new standard, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2024 and which have not been adopted in thesa financial statements. Thesea
include the following which may be relevant to the Company and its Sub-funds.

Effective for
accouniing penods
baqginnmg on or afar

Amendments to |1AS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchanga 18t January 2025
rates; Lack of exchangeabilily

Amendments to IFRS 8, Financial insiruments and IFRS ¥, Firancial 1sl January 2026
instruments: disclosures - Amendments to the classification and
measuramen! of inancial inslrumenis
Annual mprovemants to IFRSs - Velume 11 15t January 2026
IFRS 18, Presentaton and disclosure m financial staterments 1st January 2027

The Company and its Sub-funds are in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and interprefations iz expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adopton of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the financial statements.

The Sub-funds has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effectve for
the current accouniing period,

Subsequent events
Subsequent to the financial year end, Bosera Global Short Duration Investment Grade Bond

Fund, & sub-fund of the Bosera Global Public Funds Series Opan-Ended Fund Company,
was launched on 22 January 2025,
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Bogeve Giohal Publc Fuands Senes Dpen-anded Fond Company
Financiad statements for the year enoed 371 Decembar 5024

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Listed Equities

Hong Kong Stock Exchange

1288 HX AGRICULTURAL BANK OF
CHINA - H

3988 HX. BANK. OF CHINA LTD - H

3328 H BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS
CO-H

0938 HK CHINA CONSTRUCTION
BANK - H

0384 H¥ CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LTD

1378 HK CHINA HONGQIAD GROUP
LTD

0941 HK CHINA MOBILE LTD

0836 HK CHINA RESOURCES POWER
HOLDINGS CO LTD

1088 HK CHINA SHENHUA ENERGY
CO-H

0728 HK CHINA TELECOM CORP
LTD-H

0762 HK CHINA UNICOM HONG KONG
LTD

0B83 HK CNOOC LTD

1919 HK COSCO SHIPPING
HOLDINGS CO -H

1766 HK CRRC CORPLTD - H

0005 HK HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

1398 HK IND & COMM BK OF
CHINA -H

0177 HK JIANGSU EXPRESS
COLTD-H

1339 HK PEOPLE'S INSURNACE CO
GROU-H

0857 HK PETROCHINA COLTD - H

2318 HK PING AN INSURANCE
GROUPCO-H

105

Holdings

67,000
72,000

28,000

44,000
16,000

9,500
4,000

6,000
5,000
58,000

16,000
15,000

10,000
23,000

6,000
23,000
22,000

28,000

2,500

Marke! valua
HED

296,810
285,840

178,920

285,120
108,320

111,720
306,400

113,280
168,000
282,450

118,240
266,800

128,000
115,230
454 80O
119.830
188,760

108,360
185,520

115,125

% of nef
assels valo

5.27%
5.07%

+3.18%

2.08%.
1.92%

1.98%
5.44%

2.01%
2.88%
5.01%
2.10%
2.27%
2.05%
8.07%
2.13%
3.35%

1.92%
3.47%

2.04%



Bosera Giobal Puliic Funds Seres Dpen-ended Fund Company
Firanera statements for the pear anted T1 December 204

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund (contimued)

% of nel
Holdings Markel value assels value
HKD %
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Listed Equities [continued)
Hong Kong Stock Exchange
[continued)
1308 HK SITC INTERMNATIONAL
HOLDINGS 2,000 103,500 1.84%
0220 HK UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA
HOLDINGS 16.000 124 960 2.22%
Sub Total 4,195,985 T44T%
Mew York Stock Exchange
TAIWAN SEMICONDUCTOR
MANUFACTURING CO 385 559,890 0.94%
Sub Total 559,890 0 045
MASDAQ Stock Exchange
AMAZON.COM INC 65 110,763 1.97%
NVIDIA CORP 505 526 744 8.35%
Sub Total 637 507 11.32%
Total Listed Equities 5,393,302 95.73%
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Bogera Giobal Publc Funds Senes Doen-ended Fund Company
Financisd siafements for the pear enged 31 December 2024

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund {continued)

Holdings Markal value

HKD
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Total Listed Investments
{Tolal cost of investments -

HKDS,038 404) 5,393,382
Other Net Assets 240 326
Total Net Asseis Attributable to

shareholders 5,633 T18

% of nal
assals value
B

85.73%

4.27%

100.00%
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Bogera Giobal Publc Fungs Senes Open-ended Fand Company
Finanoiad stafemenis for ihe year snced 31 Decamber 2024

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
(Expressed in Unifed States dollars)

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund

% of mal
Holdings Markel value assals valve
UsD %o
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Listed Equities
Mew York Stock Exchange
DELL TECHNOLOGIES - C 300 34,572 0.27%
Sub Total 34,572 0.27%
MNASDAG Stock Exchange
MICROSOFT CORP 100 42 150 0.33%
NVIDIA CORP 300 40,287 0.32%
TESLA INC 10 60576 0.48%
Sub Total 143,013 1.13%
Total Listed Equities 177,585 1.40%
Unlisted Funds
BOSERA USD MONEY MARKET
FUND-CLASS S USD 61,930 703,795 5.55%
BOSERA HEKD MONEY MARKET ETF-
UNLISTED CLASS S HKD SHARES 350,787 489,910 3.86%
Sub Total _118a70s . 941%
Total Unlisted Funds 1,183,705 2.41%
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Bosern Globay Publc Funds Sones Dper-ended Fond Coampany
Financudl stalements for the year anded 37 December 2024

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (continued)

Listed Bonds

Place of Incorporation - British Virgin

Islands

CICCHK FLOAT 18012027
CNOOC 4.25% 08052043
CONEON 7% 25102026
CPDEV 3.85 07/14/25
FOSUNI 8.5% 19052028
GRWALL 7.15% PERP
GZINFU 2.85 07/28/26
HRINTH 4 1/2 05729729
HRINTH 4.75 04/24/27
ORIEAS 5.75% 06062029

Sub Total

Place of Incorporation - Cayman
Islands

AALTEC 2 58 DBA226
FWDGHD 7.635% 02072031
GRNCH 5.65 07/13/25
HONGQI 7.75 27032025
KINSF 0.625% 28042025
MEITUA 0% 27042027 - CONY
MEITUA 4.5 04/02/28
FOSEDF 0 02/01/25

SANLTD 2.3% 08/03/2027
TENCNT 3.94 04/22/51
YGCZCH 3.5% 03102028 - CONV
ZHOSHK 5.88% 20012028

Sub Total

10

Haolding s

200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
300,000
400,000
300,000
200,000
400,000

200,000
200,000
300,000
300,000
2,000,000
200.000
200,000
200,000
500,000
600,000
200,000
200,000

% of nel

MMarke! value assels valie
usD %
201,032 1.58%
176,530 1.39%
204 934 1.62%
204 T23 2.32%
201 6g2 1.59%
311,289 2.45%
383,880 3.03%
285,561 2.25%
185,912 1.55%
402 936 3.18%
2 658,479 20.96%
481,720 3.80%
213418 1.68%
296,445 2.34%
301,710 2.38%
285420 2.25%
187.010 1.55%
194 852 1.54%
213,548 1.69%
465,910 3.67%
433 704 3.42%
192 566 1.52%
187,840 1.56%
3.474 581 27 40%

e e LS L e



Basers Glabal Pulis Fundd Sees Oeem-ancsd Fund Comparny
Finansal ststamaniz for e pear andes 37 Dacembar 2024

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
{Expressed in Untted States dollars)

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund (continued)

Haidings

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Listed Bonds (continued)
Place of Incorporation - China
CCAMCL 4.4 FERP 400,000
CONANA 4 1/2 0B/ 7/26 200,000
JZMUNU 6.4% 20082027 200,000
Sub Total
Flace of Incorporation - France
SOCGEE & PERP 300,000
Sub Total
Place of Incorporation - Germany
DB 7.5 PERP CORP 400,000
Sub Tatal
Place of Incorporation - Hong Kong
BNKEA 6.75% 15032027 400,000
FRESHK 6 625% 16042027 240,000
HEAA 2.1 PREP 200,000
HEKINTL 5 1/4 01711/53 400,000
HKIQCL 5.75% 12092027 200,000
MANYAN 6% DE0B2034 300,000
Sub Total
110

% of net

Marke! valug assals value
ush B
382,032 3.08%
196,214 1.55%

203 630 1.60%

_. 19876 6.24%
302,946 2.39%
302,048 2.30%
3509 524 3.15%
39‘&.524_ 3 1@&

404 828 3.19%

242 405 1.81%
183,500 1.52%
415,344 3.31%
201,254 1.59%
A00,723 2.3T%
1,762,054 13.89%

—————



(continued)
{Expraessed in United States dollars)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss [continued)

Listed Bonds [continued)

Place of Incorporation - Indonesia
BBKPIJ 5.858% 30102027

Sub Total

Place of Incorporation - Metherlands
INTHED 7.5% PERP

Sub Total

Place of Incorporation - Singapore

CATLIF 5.3% 05092035
NSINTW 5.45% 11092034

Sub Total

Place of Incorporation - United
Kingdom

BACR 6.125% PERP

HSBC 6.875% PERP
STANLM 7 7/8 PERP

Sub Total

Place of Incorporation - Switzerland

n LIBS 6.85% PERP

Sub Total

Total Listed Bonds

. m

- Boasva Gioba! Pubic Fuads Seres Open-andes Find Company

Financial sinmans e ihe e gaced 17 Decambar 20

Haoldings

200,000

200,000

200,000
200,000

300 000
260,000
300.000

200,000

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund [continued)

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

% of naf

Markel valug assels valug
uso %
198,026 1.56%

1 EI'H.EIEE: 1_.55_"@

20 588 1.61%
ZEH.EEIE[ 161%
196,052 1.55%
183,640 1.53%
359.69% E'HEHL

A00 042 2.37T%

259 318 2.04%

A12 5459 2.46%

L Bnean . 6ETHR
188 502 1.56%

168 502 1.56%
11,252 278 88.71%




Bagers Giobal Pinkde Funcs Sanes Open-anded Fund Company
Fingncial araiemenis for ihe paar andad 37 Decsmiber 2024

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund (continued)

% of net
Holdings Markel value assels value
UsD %
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Total Investments
(Total cost of investments -

USD12,362,966) 12,623,568 89.52%
Other Net Assels 60,855 0.48%
Total Net Assets Attributable to

shareholders 12,684,423 100.00%
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Botara Giobal Pubic Fuads Seres Open-anded Fund Company
Financinl dpfsmants e ihe pasr anded 37 Decamber 20

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
{Expressed in United States dollars)

Bosera USD Monay Market Fund

Financlal assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Listed Exchange Traded Fund
Hong Kong Stock Exchange
BOSERA USD MMKT ETF - USD
Sub Total

Total Listed Exchange Traded Fund

Unlisted Fund

BOSERA USD MONEY MARKET ETF
[CLASS S USD

Sub Total
Tetal Unlisted Fund

Listed Bond
Hong Kong Stock Exchange
BCHINA FLOAT 28042025

Sub Tolal

Total Listed Bond

Holdings

2426

1,000,000

15,000,000

113

2% of nai

Marke! valus assals value
uso Uh

2,619 804 0.03%
2518604  003%
2,619,604 nga%
10,815,100 0.14%
10,815,100 0, 14%
10,81 E.‘Iﬂq ] 141-':.
15,013,500 0.19%
16,013,500 Q.19%
15.1}13.50{! 0.18%




Bosers Global Public Funds Senes Oper-ended Mund Company
Financia! AISmanls fir e pear anded 71 December 20

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)

{Expressed in United States dollars)

Bosera USD Money Market Fund (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Unlisted Bonds
Place of Incorporation - China

ICBCAS £.85% 10022025
ICBCAS 4.9% 12022025

Sub Total

Place of Incorporation - Hong Kong
CMINLE FLOAT 21042025

GFGCHK 4.8% 068052025

GFGCHK 4 .86% 28052025

GUOTJIU 4 85% 08052025

GUOTJU 4.95% 15052025

GUOTJU 4 95% 28042025

Sub Total

Total Unlisted Bonds
Unlisted Certificate of Deposit
Place of Incorporation - Australia

CHEVBK 4.85% 15012025
CHEVEBK 4.995% 24022025

Sub Total

Holdings

58,000,000
48,000,000

28.000 000
45,000,000
34 000,000
48,000,000
58,000,000
50,000,000

50,000,000
58,000,000

114

% of nef

Markel value assels value
UsD %

58,000 580 0.75%
48,000,000 0.62%
‘_‘IEEL.LE_TIDD.E-EU_ I.E?i-i
28,000 000 0.36%
45 000000 0.58%
34,000.000 0.44%
48,000 000 0.62%
58,000 000 0.75%
50,000.000 0.64%
_EEB.UED.DDQ __3 39%_
369000580 476%
20,000,000 0.64%
58,000,000 0.75%
108,000,000 1.39%




Bosera Giobal Pubic Fundy Seres Oper-ended Fund Company
Fingrcial slaiements for e mear ended 17 Decembar 2004

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Bosera USD Money Market Fund (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss{continued)

Unlisted Certificate of Deposit
{continued)

Place of Incorporation - China

AGRBK 4.87% 12022025
BCHINA 4.687% 07042025
BCHINA 4.83% 12032025
BCHINA 4 B5% 17032025
BCHINA 4.85% 24032025
BOHAIB 4.88% 08032025
CHIMIN 0% 23012025
CINDBE 0% 16042025
CINDEE 0% 18022025
ICBCAS 0% 14022025
ICBCAS 0% 16042025
ICBCAS 0% 23012025
ICBCAS 4.75% 13052025
ICBCAS 4.82% 15042025
ICBCAS 5.1% 19032025
ICBCAS 5.18% 10022025
SHANPU 4. B45% 18032025
SHANPU 4.85% 11032025
SHANPU 4.99% 22012025
SHANPU 4.895% 03022025

Sub Total
Place of Incorporation - Hong Kong

GUOTJ £ 9% 26032025
GUOTJIU 4.8% 23062025

Sub Tatal

Hoidings

50,000,000
50,000,000
30,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
40,000,000
43,000,000
50,000,000
48 000,000
12,500,000
48,000,000
60,000,000
50,000,000
40,000,000
38,000,000
48,000,000
50,000,000
40,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000

40,000,000
25,000,000

115

s of net

Markat valus aszets valie
usD %
50,000,000 0.64%
50,000,000 0.64%
30,000,000 0.39%
20,000,000 0.64%
50,000,000 0.64%
40,000,000 01.52%
42 B&T 560 0.55%
48.310,000 0.64%
47 558,080 0.62%
12428 625 0.16%
47 344 800 D61%
59 825 600 0.77%
50,000,000 0.64%
40,000,000 0.52%
38,000,000 0.49%
48,000,000 0.62%
50,000,000 064%
40,000,000 0.52%
50,000,000 0.64%
50,000,000 0.64%
BE5 475 665 11.53%
40,000 000 0.52%
25,000,000 0.32%
65 000,000 0.84%




Sogern Fobal Fulis Funos Sevea Open-ented Fund T
Fnancial sislemants for ifve pear ended J1 December 2024

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
{Expressed in United States dollars)

Bosera USD Money Market Fund (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss{continued)

Unlisted Certificate of Deposit
(continued)

Place of Incarporation - Macao
ICBCAS 4.98% 23012025

Sub Total

FPlace of Incorporation - Singapore

MCBKSG 4.85% 21052025
MCBKSG 4.88% 20022025

Sub Total

Total Unlisted Certificate of Deposit
Total Investments

{ Total cost of investments -
UsD1 600,022 713)

Other Net Assets

Total Net Assets Attributable to
shareholders

Holdings

40,000,000

48,000,000
50,000,000

116

% of nat

Market value assals value
UsD %
38,956,012 0.52%
Lessmm2 0.52%
48 000,000 0.62%
50,000,000 0.64%
98000000 _ _126%
1,206,474 677 _15.54%
1,603,823 461 Z0.66%
6,159,502 651 T9.34%
T.763.426,112 100.00%




Bazars Globa! Publc Funds Srnes Opem-anded Fund Company
Financial sialernerts for the year ended 37 Decembear 2024

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
(Expressed in Unifed Stales dollars)

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - |

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Unlisted Fund

BOSERA USD MONEY MARKET
FUMD-CLASS 5 USD

Sub Total

Total Unlisted Fund
Listed Bonds

Place of Incorporation - British Virgin
Islands
AVICCP 2.375% 09022026
CCAMCL 1.875% 20012026
CPDEV 3.85 07/14/25
GUOCAP 6.3 12102725
GZINFU 5.95% 21032026
HRINTH 4 625% 03062026
HUAWEI 4.125% 06052026
ORIEAS 1.875% 17112025
YWS0AQ4.1 10202025

Sub Total

17

Haoldings

1,359

400,000
400,000
200,000
400,000
300,000
400,000
200,000
400 000
300,000

o of nel

Marka! value assels value
uso %%

15,448 0.18%
PO .. RO V1
_. 15448  0.18%
385,028 4 48%

385 408 4 46%%

1946 482 207T%

402 516 4.65%
302,118 3.49%

304 344 4 55%
187,072 2.27%

388 504 4 48%

297 054 3.43%
_____2.952.'526 34.08%
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Bosera Giobal Purbic Funds Saves Opea-snded Fund Company
Financial sfataments for the pear ended 31 December 200

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - | (continued)

Financial assets at falr value through
profit or loss (continued)

Listed Bonds |continuad)

Place of Incorporation - Cayman
Islands

BIDL 1.72% 00042026
COBLFD 2% 04032026
JD 3 875% 29042026
KINSF 0.625% 29042025
MEITUA O D4/27727

PDD 0% 01122025-CONV
LHOSHK 0% 21052025
Sub Total

Place of Incorporation - China
BOCOM 3.8% PERP

GIDZCD 6.8% 05082025

ICBECAS 3.58 PREF CORP

Sub Total

Place of Incorporation - France
ACAFP B8.125% PERP

Sub Total

Place of Incorporation - Germany
ALVGR 3.5% FERP

Sub Total

118

Holdings

500,000
200,000
400,000
2,000,000
400,000
200,000
2.000,000

400,000
300,000
400,000

200,000

200,000

% of not

Markel valug assels value
uso i
480,900 5.55%
193,390 2.23%

304 728 4 56%
285421 3.29%

394 020 4.55%:

182 522 2.22%

245 772 341%
2,236,753 EE.EE
395 452 4 57%

302 580 3 49%,

345 388 4 56%
_.Loes4z0 1262%
204,138 2.38%
____g_ﬂd.'laﬁ_ L 2.36%
192 478 2.22%
192,478 E,IE“JEH




Bosara Giobal Puthe Foads Sevaes Doen-ended Fund Company
Fanancial laismends for they ear angied! 51 December 2024

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
(Expressed in Uniled States dollars)

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund - | {continued)

% of mef
Holdings Market value assels value
uso 5
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss [continued)
Listed Bonds (continued)
Place of Incorporation - Hong Kong
BCLMHE FLOAT 260682027 400,000 3848, 756 4. 61%
CHGEDMNU 4% 05112025 400,000 396,532 4. 58%
FRESHK 6.625% 16042027 200,000 202,004 2.33%
XIAOMI 0% 17122027 200,000 223,732 2.58%
Sub Taotal B 1,12_2,_EIE o 1411}"&
Place of Incorporation - Japan
MOMURA FLOAT 02072027 400,000 403,200 4.65%
Sub Total 403,200 4.65_%_
Place of Incorporation - United

Kingdom
HSBC 4% PERP 200,000 185,108 225%
LLOYDS 7.5% PERF 200,000 201,756 2.33%
MW 6% FERP 200 000 188,678 2.30%
Sub Total 585 440 B.B8%
Total Listed Bonds s _E_B‘_DI_E}F __Eg._?ﬁ;ﬁ_
Total Investments
[Total cost of investments -

LUSDa 832, 773) 8,816,525 102.30%
Other Met Liabilites (251,224) (2.90%)
Total Net Assets Attributable to

shareholders 8,665,301 100.00%
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Bossra Global Firsss Fungs Sames Dpaa-snded Fund Campary
Finarclal statemants for the year snoed 31 Doecevaher 2024

Portfolio statement as at 31 December 2024 (Unaudited)

(continued)
(Exprassed in United States dollars)

Bosera USD Money Market Fund

As at 31 December 2024

Weighted average maturity
Weighted average life

Dadly liquid assets
Weekly liquid assets

120

Fakr Valus
usD

1,194,782,778
1,480,924 263

45,40 days
46,03 days

% of
Net Assets

15.56%
19.29%



Bexera Giobal Fublc Funds Series Opevi-ended Fusd Company
Financipl slalernants for the year ended 31 December 2624

Statement of movements in portfolio holdings

for the year ended 31 December 2024
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund

% of nel asseis % of nel assals

At 31 December  Af 37 Decomber

2024 2023

Listed Equities a5 73% B5.TE%
Listed Bonds 0. 00% 8.86%
Other net assets 4.27% 5.365%
Total net assets _ mﬂn% 100.00%

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund

% of net assels

% of net assels

At 31 December Al 31 Dacamber

2024 2023

Listed Equities 1.40% 2.24%
Listed bonds 88.71% 95.46%
Unlisted Fund 9.41% 0.00%
Other Net Assets 0.48% 2.30%
Total net assets 100.00% 100.00%
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Eogers Globai Pubic Funds Senes Dpen-enced Fund Company
Financiad statemerts for the pear ended 31 December 2024

Statement of movements in portfolio holdings

for the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Bosera USD Money Market Fund

% of net assels % of nel assels

Al 31 December Al 31 December

2024 2023

Listed Exchange Traded Fund 0.03% 0.08%

Unlisted Fund 0.14% 0.36%

Listed Bond 0.19% 0.00%

Unlisted Bond 4 T6% 2.665%

Unlisted Certificate of Depesit 15.54% 6.73%

Other Net Assets 79.34% 80.16%

Total net assets 100.00% 100.00%
Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund =1

% of net assets % of nel assets

At 31 December At 31 December

2024 2023

Listed Bond 102.72% 129.35%

Unlisted Fund 0.18% 0.00%

Other Net Assets (2.90%) (29.35%)

Total net assets 100.00% 100.00%
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Bozars Giabal Fubie Funds Sares Dpen-ened Fund Company
Fananciad siatemprts far ihe pedd 8000d 51 Decemier 2024

Information on exposure arising from financial derivative

instruments (Unaudited)

The table balow analyses the lowest, highest and average gross exposure ansing from the
use of financial derivative instruments for any purpose as a proportion to the Bosara Hong
Keng Equity Plus Fund and Bosera Greater China Enhanced Retum Bond Fund's lotal net

asset value for the year ended 31 Dec 2024,

Basars Grealer

Bosera Hong  China Enhanced

Kong Equity
Pius Fund
2024

% of Nel
assel value

Loweslt gross exposure 2.27%
Highest gross exposure 21.15%

Average gross exposure T.92%

Relum Bond
Fund

2024

% of Net
assel value

28.46%
28.91%

28.68%

The table below analyses the lowes!, highast and average net exposure arising from the use
of financial dervative instruments for any purpose as a proportion io Bosera Hong Kong
Equily Plus Fund and Bosera Greater China Enhanced Returnn Bond Fund's total net asset

value for the year ended 31 December 2024,

Eosera Grealer

Bosera Hong  China Enhanced

Kong Equily
Flus Fund
2024

% of Net
assel value

Lowest net exposura 2.27%
Highest net exposure 21.15%

Average nel exposuns 7.02%

125

Retum Bond
Find

2024

2% of Neld
assal value

28.46%
2881%
28.68%
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Bonara Giobal Pybie Funds Séves Open-snded Fund Company
Finarcial stafemens lor the pear enced 37 December 2024

Performance record (Unaudited)

{a) Total net assef value *

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund
At 31 December 2024
At 31 December 2023

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund
Al 31 Decarmber 2024
At 31 December 2023

Bosera USD Money Market Fund
Al 31 December 2024
Al 31 December 2023

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month Interval Offering Bond
Fund —|

At 31 December 2024

At 31 December 2023

HED
HEKD

usD
usD

usD
Uso

usD
usD

5,716,387
10,361,728

12,684 423
41,858,747

7.763,429.516
2,823,666,024

8,676,835
8,542 844

®  Tolal net asset value was valued in accordance with the Explanatory Memorandum.
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Bogera Giobal Fubic Funds Senes Open-ented Fund Company
Firanciel stadements for e pear ended 37 December 2024

Performance record (Unaudited) (continued)

{b) Net assef value per share =

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund

Class - A HKD
Class - & USD
Class - 5 USD

Bosera Greater China Enhanced
Return Bond Fund

Class - A HKD

Class - A HED - MDis

Class - A RMB

Class - A USD

Class = A USD - MDis

Class - | HKD

Class - | USD

Class - 5 USD

Bosara USD Money Market Fund
Class - A USD

Class - | USD

Class - 3 USD

Class - C USD

Class - NUSD

Bosera Stable Income 18-Month
Imterval Offering Bond Fund = |

Class - A HED - MDis

Class - A USD

Class - & USD - MDis

Class - 5 USD - MDis

Class - & RMB - MDis

The net asset value per share was calculated in accordance with the Explanatory

Memorandum,

Dencminalion

currency

127

HKD
ush
usD

HKD
HKD
RME
ush
UsD
HKD
uso
usD

usD
usD

HKD
usD
ush
usD
RMBE

2024

7.2414
7.2647
7.6950

8 6876
11.7164
10.1573

86419
10.7071
10.3349
10.5402

113208
11.3353
11.3644
112582
107631

10.2077
10,9808
10.3202
10,4440
10,2366

2023

6.6047
6.5905
68553

2.8790
2.0372
11.0092
8 .8404
8.9409
10.3757
9.9615
10.0467

10.7278
10.7358
10.7525
10.6851
10.2454

10.088%
10,3582
10,1434
10,1844



(c)

Performance record (Unaudited) (continued)

Bodara Gioba! Publc Fond: Sevne: Open-snded Fund Company
Financial samments for the year soced 31 December 204

Highest and lowest price record {dealing net asset value per share) *

Bosera Hong Kong Equity Plus Fund
Denomination
CLIrTaTRC Y
Class - & HKD HKD
Class - A USD uso
Class - 5 USD uso

Highes! net
gugal yalus
par shars
024

T.8818
T.6088
B.1222

Bosera Greater China Enhanced Return Bond Fund

Lenomination

CLITEMCY

Cless - A HED HED
Class - A HED - MDis HED
Class - A RMB RMEB
Class - A USD uso
Class - A USD - MDis UED
Clags - | HED HED
Class - | LSD ush
Clags - 5 USD ush

Bosera USD Money Marke! Fund

Cenomination

CUTTBRCY

Class - & USD LsD
Class - C LUISD LusD
Class = | USD UsD
Class - 5 USD LSD
Class - M USD usD

Highest met
assal value
e sharg
2024

10.0681

B.gas7
11. 7843
10.3103

B.2181
10.8547
10.4768
10,5580

Highast net
assad valie
par share
2024

113208
11.2582
113353
11. 3844
107831

Lowvest mal
ausef value
par shars
2024

& 0374
8.0173
62600

Lenvast maf
Fasel value
oo sharg

BITRY
B EBSD
108381
87288
B 5264
102751
5.8521
o445

Lowes! nel
es5ad value
pov share
2624

107344
10.7015
10 7428
10,7583
10:2513

Bosera Stable Incomea 18-Month Interval Offering Bond Fund — |

Denommalion

CANTENCY

Class - & USD S
Class - A HKD - MDD HED
Class - A LUISD - MDis s
Clhass - 5 LUISD - MDis USDr
Class - A BMEB - Mk RMEB

* The highest net asset value per share and lowest net asset value per share were

Highest nat
aEsed value
per share

2024

106813
10223
103455
102451
102365

Lenieif il
azsad vale
par zhare
2024

10,3588
100558
10,1081
10,1508

8505

caleulated in accordance with the Explanatory Memorandum.
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Higia st mat
assst vale
par shans
2023

B 7810
B 740
BOsTS

Higires! mat
assof value
per share
2023

101772
B 7508
11 0a00
10 0536
88453
10,3980
10.0520
10,1642

Hiigrligsl ned
assel valn
er shue
2023

107277
10.£950
10. 7358
10. 7524
102454

FHighest nef
assal vale
pas ahars
23

10,3582
100824
1001434
10,1844

Lowesl el
aszel valsa
par shans
2023

65329
5. 3555
LR ]

L ewvaEr maf
azzel valus
par share
2023

83323
BE245
10 4507
82788
B 5182
B.7o00
8.3810
04412

Lowrst runl
asae! value
per share
2043

10.1763

10,1654
101781
10. 1846
10.6015

Lerwrest ol
AL vatug

20T
1060003

L0749
B.0899



Sogera Giobal Fubic Fungs Sepes Dpen-ended Fund Company

Administration

Manager

Eosara Assel Managament (International)
Co., Limited

Suila 4109, Jardina House

One Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong
Directors of the Company

LIAN Shaodong
HE Kai

Directors of the Manager

WU Huifeng
OU Zhiming
LiAN Shaodong
HE Kai

ZHOU Yi

Custodian, Administrator and Registrar

CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited
6/F, CME Wing Lung Bank Building
45 Des Voeux Road

Central

Hong Kong

Legal Advisor

Simmons & Simmons

Level 30, One Taikoo Place

878 King's Road
Hong Kong
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